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Bermuda
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Units 2002-2006, 20th Floor
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Concordia Plaza
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Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Stock Code

Stock Code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited: 00725

Principal Banker
Hang Seng Bank

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor
Central, Hong Kong

Principal Registrar and Transfer Office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Branch Registrar and Transfer Office
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

17M Floor

Hopewell Centre
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Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Website

http://perennial.todayir.com
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MISSION STATEMENT

7N H

Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain EHEEERATRNIEHRELESR - BKE
the high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and A EBRE  UERFETUEARNBEM - K
service to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a ERRERE  BFEBHEBLEE ZTE2I -
business demanding excellence in all of its operations.



CORPORATE PROFILE
SEEEN

The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and
trades quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid
wire, wire harnesses and plastic resins. The Group's primary
markets are America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan
and Southeast Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national
producers of electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, as at 31st December 2019, the
Group employed 1,115 full time staff worldwide involved in
management, sales and marketing, shipping, procurement,
financial and accounting, engineering, production and
manufacturing. The Group considers its employees to be its
most important asset while its key values are quality, prudence
and integrity.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®RE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to announce
the audited consolidated financial results of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December 2019.

The Group's revenue was HK$301,357,000 (2018:
HK$355,744,000). Loss for the year was HK$13,198,000
compared to HK$1,760,000 in 2018. Loss per share was
HK$0.066 (2018: HK$0.009).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2019. The Group did not pay any dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2018.

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday,
19th May 2020 (“2020 AGM").

The register of members of the Company will be closed during
the periods from Thursday, 14th May 2020 to Tuesday, 19th
May 2020, both days inclusive and during which period no
share transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company's
branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 13th May 2020.

Business Review

The Group’s revenue decreased by 15.3% to HK$301 million in
this financial year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to
reduction of sales as a result of continued intense market price
competition escalated by the trade disputes between the United
States and China. Revenue in terms of sales mix was relatively
stable when compared with that of last year. Sales in power cords
and plastic resins accounted for 63% of the Group’s revenue, and
cables, wires and wire harness accounted for 37% of the Group's
revenue.

The gross margin increased from 15.8% in 2018 to 18.5% in
2019. The increase in gross margin was attributable to lower
production costs and improved manufacturing efficiency by
using accurate production planning and material usage system.

The Group recorded a negative net profit margin of 4.4% in 2019
compared to negative net profit margin 0.5% in 2018. The net
loss was mainly due to a decrease in fair value of investment
property in Hong Kong of approximately HK$8.1 million; and
redundancy compensation of approximately HK$6.3 million
occurred in the year ended 31st December 2019.
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As to the factory construction in Quang Ngai, Vietnam, the
phase Il construction works consisting of the construction of
two factory buildings on phase |l development of the land,
was completed during the first half of 2019. The first revenue
was recorded in April 2019. Currently, approximately 40% of
production has been shifted to factory Quang Ngai, Vietnam.
The factory in Quang Ngai Vietnam will focus on the production
of regular and mature products while factories in Shenzhen City
and Heyuan City in China will focus on the production of unique
products.

The Group has entered into a construction contract on 11th
March 2020 as the Third Phase Construction Contract for the
Third Phase Construction Works consisting of the construction
of two factory buildings for cable manufacturing and one
auxiliary warehouse on phase three development of the land
in Quang Ngai. For details of the transaction, please refer to
Company's announcement dated 11th March 2020. The Third
Phase Construction Works are expected to be completed by the
end of August 2020.

Regarding the Group’'s ESG performance, please refer to the
Group’'s ESG report on page 11 to 36.

Future Prospect

The global economic situation is complex and volatile, and
economic growth is still relatively weak. The situation is further
compounded by the outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
in the beginning of 2020. However, the Group has full
confidence in the future development of the Group. The Group
will continue to maintain close and stable business relationship
with renowned customers in the United States and Japan and
will further develop quality customers in Japan, Europe and the
emerging markets.

Currently, the outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has
minimal impact on the operations of the factories in Vietnam,
Shenzhen City and Heyuan City in China. The Group has responded
quickly and adopted precautionary measures to maintain normal
operations. At the moment, the operations of factories in Vietnam,
Shenzhen City and Heyuan City in China have been substantially
restored to the normal operation capacities. The Group will monitor
the situation and continuously engage relevant resources and
adjust the purchase and production activities in a timely manner
to mitigate the potential impact.

The Group expects that a balanced development will be achieved
through diversified factory development in Quang Ngai, Vietnam,
the factories in Shenzhen City and Heyuan City in China with
the existing business to increase the value of shareholders. It
will also enhance the growth and sustainable development of
the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EHERE (BE)

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights and
enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result, the Group
has established the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere
to the best practice.

Social Responsibility

The Group’s factories are regularly subject to factory audit
by multinational enterprises. The factory audit served as a
catalyst to enhance the Group's standard on corporate social
responsibility.

Moreover, the Group holds a strong belief in corporate social
responsibility. So the Group continues to participate in and
support community activities in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thanks to our loyal
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous
support and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December 2019, the consolidated short-term
borrowings of the Group was approximately HK$68,435,000.
The borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank
balances and cash amounted to approximately HK$36,548,000.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group’s trade and bill
receivables balance was approximately HK$81,163,000,
representing 26.9% of the year's revenue of approximately
HK$301,357,000. The Group adopted a stringent credit policy to
minimize credit risk.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing total borrowings to total equity was 12.2%
(2018: 10.6%).

The Group's average cost of borrowings was 3.68% for the year
ended 31st December 2019 (2018: 3.15%).

Capital Structure

As at 31st December 2019, the consolidated shareholders’
equity of the Group was approximately HK$562,524,000,
representing a decrease of 2.7% over that of the previous year.
The debt to equity ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
liabilities to shareholders’ equity, was approximately 27.1%.

Capital Expenditure and Material
Acquisitions
During the year under review, capital expenditure approximate
to HK$15,449,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December 2019, the Group's trade and loan finance
facilities amounted to approximately 173,040,000, which were
secured by legal charges over certain land and buildings and
investment properties of the Group with a total carrying value
of HK$144,530,000.

Segment Information

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and Mainland
China continued to be the Group’s major markets, accounting
for approximately 28%, 57% and 14% of the Group's total sales
respectively. The remaining 1% of sales were generated from
customers located in Europe and other countries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EREMwm IO E)

Employees’ Remuneration Policy

As at 31st December 2019, the Group employed 1,115 full time
management, administrative and production staff worldwide.
The Group follows market practice on remuneration packages.
Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined by
senior management annually depending on the employee's
performance, experience and industry practice. The Group
invests in its human capital. In addition to on-job training,
the Group adopts policies of continuous professional training
programs.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged, if necessary.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31st December 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HEREREKS

About this Report

This report is the fourth annual environmental, social and
governance (ESG) report prepared by Perennial International
Limited (“Perennial”, “the Company”, “the Group” and “we" or
us”) with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide published by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The report covers all business
departments in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Heyuan and Vietnam.
Unless otherwise specified, the period involving the figures
and content of the report would be 1st January 2019 to 31st
December, 2019.

The figures and contents of this report mainly come from the
statistical reports and internal communication documents of the
Company. The Board of the Company undertakes that there
are no misrepresentations or misleading statements contained
in this report, and assumes responsibilities for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of its content. Upon confirmation by
the management, the report was approved by the Board on 24th
March 2020.

For any enquiry on the report, please email to info@perennialcable.
com.

Perennial’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Practice

The Group engages in the manufacturing and trading of high-
quality power cords and related products for medical, solar energy,
automotive and home appliances as well as the selling of such
products to renowned producers of electrical and electronic
products in different continents. While committed to the pursuit
of profit, the Group also strives to reduce any negative impacts
on the environment, its workforce and business partners, and the
community. Through the establishment of management systems
and implementation of various measures in terms of environmental
protection, protection of workers’ rights and interests, product
quality and social welfare, we aim to create values for all.

The Group holds fast the conviction of corporate accountability
and integrates environmental, social and governance elements
in all aspects of the Group from top to bottom. The Board of
Directors assumes the responsibility of assessing our performance
and the existence of any risks in terms of the environment,
society and governance to ensure that important issues are dealt
with according to their priorities, and to approve any relevant
information for disclosure by the Group. In their day-to-day
operation, operation sites and departments of the Group realize
policies and measures of the Group for the environmental, social
and governance management by coordinating and implementing
appropriate policies and measures. Major customers of the
Group conduct regular inspection and assessment in the Group's
production base in connection with the social responsibility. As a
part of its commitment to the corporate social responsibility, the
Group continuously improves its internal management on the basis
of the recommendations from such inspection and assessment. As
a part of its commitment to the corporate social responsibility, the
Group continuously improves its internal management on the basis
of the recommendations from such inspection and assessment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -MHERERAMEE)

Stakeholder Communication

The Group's business operation may affect its shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, and the government, and
in turn, they may have their expectations and opinions on
Perennial’'s operation and strategies. To maintain effective
communication with our stakeholders and for the incorporation
of their demands in a balanced manner for the enhancement
of our operation, we have prepared a set of management
procedures regarding stakeholder communication according
to their characteristics, and used appropriate communication
channels so that information can be delivered effectively and in
a timely fashion. The Group’s means of communication with its
stakeholders are specified as follows:

Stakeholder Group Means of Communication

Shareholders — Regular announcements

— Annual general meetings

Government — Appointments
Employees — Formulating a work appraisal system
— Setting up suggestion boxes
— Direct email communication with the
management staff
Customers — Customer satisfaction survey
— Regular communication (by means
of telephone, site visit and business
dinner)
— After-sales service
Suppliers — Continuous follow-up and evaluation

of suppliers
— Regular communication (by means of
telephone, site visit, business dinner)

Charity Partners — Active contact

EhEBR
SENEXEBLERRR BN BT -EPK
HEBASHNEFTREZE  TeHEHNEE
LRRBHAHEMER - BT HEAREROER
FrRAFEVEE[RR @ - 0 A% 1 1P O B ST 187 3 4
ACARAE R B2 0E - PR B D& RIS
ATHNERREERF  BBKAEANE
BREB CHREBAMELE  ARMEE-%
BRFESFNHELABBEBIANT:

FtrEdR BEAX

PR -EHAE
-FERRAE

BF -EHOR

8T - B TAF &Y il /B
-RIUBRM
-HEEABEREBBER

BP -BEEREERE
- EMAER(BRMA  BHE
B THERE)
- ER R

HER -RHERENFEHRER
- EMAER(BRMA  BHE
7o THERE)

NE I - TR



Annual Report 2019 £ iR @

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Material Issues on Environmental, Social and
Governance

In 2016, an independent consultant was engaged to solicit
opinions and suggestions from our stakeholders such as
our staff, customers and suppliers in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide to
facilitate the materiality assessment to identify environmental,
social and governance issues that are relevant and important to
Perennial, thus setting the corresponding strategic directions.
Results of that materiality assessment have been still applied up
to date. Although our factory in Vietnam was put into operation
this year, but there was no significant change in the overall
operation and business in the year compared to that in 2016.
Upon careful consideration, the Board decides to adopt the list
of material issues prepared in the previous years. The significant
issues and their relevance to the Group are summarized as
follow:

Environmental

RE HeheEr®ms(E)

EENRR HERERRE

EHRREFEHIMCRE HEREAMS
BEDAMER  RZE-—REFFEERBL
BEAGRKMMNET FF  #HEFSZEHENH
FEWEER  EMETERNENG > #ARIEE
MEMAEZMNRT HEEREARZE M
BFIHEARER TR - EXMEFENERE
RES - AF BEABEOBRBEERALE -8
REAAFHEBLBEREBE _T—NEMAL
TEEBANE EFSLFMEER  REMH
BARLAFEEMRIUNERRBFE BB
ZEEEMER HBEERRNT

Employment

RiE E &
Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group
A BHiEREEZHBEY B BEEREEZHBEY
Energy The Group consumes energy in Occupational The production personnel face

conservation machine operation and lighting,

during the production process.

o
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SEAELEBRTEEREIRNA
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Waste disposal During the production process, the
Group produces various wastes,
some of which are hazardous and

require proper handling.

health and safety

BEREEZ2

Labor and human
rights regulations

certain health and safety risks
when they are working on the
production lines. The Company is
responsible for the work safety of
its staff members.
SENEBEEER FTTEFREE
HeETRERZZ2RR - 26H
EAREEIIRLZZ -

The operation of the Company
must comply with local laws

and regulations. We particularly
stress the provision of statutory
protection and rights for our staff.

JE 2 W) B 18 SEELEBRTEELAREE ZIRARER LQFMEELANEEMMAR
B -HoBEEEREY FTEX ERCBPMLEERBS TRM
ERIE - EERBERER -

Water resources The Group utilizes municipal Staff training Our staff training helps enhance

management water in some of its
production phases.
KERE R SEENSEERGFREGEAT BIF

K o

product quality and production
efficiency.
REIRMHBIEHRAERE
ENEERE-
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Environmental
RIE
Relevance to the Group

EEHEEZHEYT

Issue

E 3]

Employment
& &
Relevance to the Group

EEHEEZHEYT

Material recycling

YRR E

Packaging
materials

BERMF

Environmental
regulations and
impact

RIBZARLEE

Since the Group produces various
wastes during the production
process, the reuse of wasted
materials can reduce land
pollution.

SEELESRTEELSEE
£ EREREAAR DS T

S

As the Group must use packaging
materials to deliver products, such
materials may become wastes
after delivery.
SETEXERRVATREE
M EEBRBEMHEHRERE
ARE A R EEHL -

The operation of the Company
must comply with local laws and
regulations. We particularly stress
the possible environmental impact
of our production bases.
NENEEV AT EERER
ER RFILHEREELMA]
RRUHRRBANTE -

Employment
relationship

1 1% B8 1%

Various business development
plans of the Company are closely
linked to recruiting and retaining
staff. Building good employment
relationships and positive
employer image is conducive to
hiring and retaining talents.
NEIBAEKERTEINOHITER
ATHHRERGEEEER - 2
UREFNERER BIRIIE
FHER  GHHBEBEMBEEAT -




Annual Report 2019 £ iR @

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE HeheEr®ms(E)

Operation Community
giE HE

Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group

HE BHiEREEZHBEY HE BEiEREEZHBEY

Product quality Customers expect to purchase Community Committed to serving as a
quality and safe products. investment company of integrity, the Group
Product quality and safety are the sustains its participation in and
foundations for keeping the faith support of community activities in
of our customers. Hong Kong and China.

EmBE BEEHEREEERLENER ° MHEERA RAEEBBRFHREOEENER
EmBERTE2MREFERRE FIARMFHEL BN FE D
DZEA - HEEE -

Customer Maintaining good customer

relationship relations brings stable income
streams and corporate
development for Perennial Group.

EPBAE HENEFPNBERATSEHNEEA

Anti-corruption

Supply chain
management

HEsEe g

ERENBARBEMERER -

The operation of the Company
must comply with local laws
and regulations. Business ethics
stands as the foundation for the
Company's reputation.
RAMEEL AT AEMI AR
EH O BEBRERRQAEEZ
A

As its suppliers may affect

the environment during their
operation, Perennial is responsible
for supporting the suppliers

with better environmental
performance.
HEMIEERIGHREBX
e BHREEEIRFRERR
REMHER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -MHERERAMEE)

Environment

Environmental Management Procedures

The Group optimized its environmental management and actively
ensured that environmental management was performed
well by each of its operation sites in order to respond to the
expectations of various stakeholders. The Group complied
with the relevant environmental laws and regulations such as
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’'s Republic of
China (China), the Air Pollution Prevention Law of China, the
Water Pollution Prevention Law of China, and Vietnam's Law on
Environmental Protection, the National Technical Regulation on
Ambiant and Air Quality, the National Technical Regulations on
Industrial Emission of Inorganic Substance and Dust, the Decree
on Management of Waste and Discarded Materials and the
Decree on the Drainage and Treatment of Waste Water. There
were no cases of violation of the above laws and regulations
during the year. Each of production bases of the Group has
developed the corresponding Environmental Procedures to
provide clear guidelines for various departments in connection
with energy conservation, more efficient utilization of resource,
proper disposal of wastes and prevention and control of
environmental pollution. Such procedure also clearly provides for
the responsibilities of the Group’s personnel so that it can be
effectively implemented. We also regularly review and evaluate
the implementations of environmental management plans and
procedures, and various environmental goals and targets, and
promptly take corrective and preventive measures against
doubtful areas.

In addition, according to the “Provisions of Carbon Emissions
Management of the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone”
and “Interim Measures of Shenzhen Municipality for the
Administration of Carbon Emission Permits Trading”, our
production base in Shenzhen has joined the Shenzhen carbon
emission trading market.

12 55
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Energy Conservation

The Group relies on externally purchased electricity as the
main source of energy to power its production machinery and
provide energy for its dormitories. The Group also consumes
diesel and gasoline to power forklift trucks and motor vehicles.
The Group strives to increase energy efficiency in general and
reduce our dependence on direct and indirect energy. For such
purposes, we conserve energy in respect of indoor temperature
adjustment, lighting and heating, as follows:

Factory of the Company in China was built on the principle
of "north-south orientation” so that air is circulated in
the factory, thus reducing the demand for indoor air
conditioning.

Ventilation has been considered as the new factory in
Vietnam was built. Currently, electric fans are installed
for ventification for the production area instead of air
conditioning.

Energy-saving lamps are used for indoor lightning in the
factory in China, while 100W LED lamps being used for
outdoor lighting. Lamps on the fencing wall in Heyuan
factory are powered with solar energy, saving about 8,340
kilowatt-hours of electricity per year.

Transparent windows are installed for the production
area of the Vietnam factory to introduce natural light for
illumination, reducing the demand for electronic lamps.

Factories in China utilize residual heat from air
compressors to supply hot water for dormitories.

As our Vietnam factory went into operation, priority was
given to the introduction of new types of equipment with
higher energy efficiency in order to reduce unnecessary
energy consumption in the production process.
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HekeEr®RE (B)

The following tables set out the Company’s energy consumption
and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions performance from 2017

TR AAE T —LEtFE_FT-NAFHSZ
BRBRNERENMREREENRRR:

to 2019:
Consumption RE
Energy Consumption Indicators Units 2019 2018 2017 EREARE 30 ZB-NF Z%-\F ZB-tF
Total energy consumption MWh 8,316 8,262 8,512 BEREEE KR 8,316 8,262 8,512
Direct energy consumption MWh 800 653 681 HERRERE KRR 800 653 681
Indirect energy consumption MWh 7516 7,609 7,831 HEERERE KRB 7516 7,609 7,831
Energy consumed per tonne of output' kWh/tonne 734 715 627 SHESRHBE TLE/LE 734 715 627
Emission HHE
GHG Emission Indicators Units 2019 2018 2017 BERBHEHEE B ZE-NEF ZB-0\F ZB-tF
GHG emission tC0? 4,383 4183 4,309 BERBRENE H-4ltiE 8 4,383 4183 4,309
Direct GHG Emission (Scope 1) tCOe? 210 173 180 ERREREHN W-SiREs 210 173 180
(BE-)
Indirect GHG Emission (Scope 2) tC0e? 4173 4,010 4129 BELZREHN B_StKEE’ 4173 4,010 4129
(BED)
GHG emission per tonne of output’ kgCOxe/tonne 387 362 317 SHEERHENE AT-ELKEER 387 362 317
/REER

This includes the output of plastic pellets, wires, socket wires
and extension cords.

Scope 1 Greenhouse gas emission refers to the direct emissions
from fuel combustion of fixed and mobile sources, which, in
relation to the Group, are the greenhouse gas emissions directly
from the use of diesel, gasoline and natural gas. The estimation
method and emission coefficients are adopted from the
Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse
Gas Emissions from Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial) issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China and the 2006 IPCC (Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change) Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories. Scope2 Greenhouse gas emissions are, in
relation the Group, indirect emissions derived from the purchase
of electricity. The emission factors are taken from the data
released by CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, the Average Carbon
Dioxide Emission Factors of Regional Power Grids in China for
2011 and 2012 (20114 FM20124F f E [& 1% B 48 F 15 = A1 iz
BEMEF)), and from the Emission Factors of Vietnam's Power
Grid for 2017 (20175 . 3 EA BEE F) released by Ministry
of Climate Change of Vietnam. Greenhouse gas emissions for
2017 and 2018 have been restated due to the adoption of an
alternative emission factor for the South China power grid. The
Group will continue to use these emission factors until the
relevant authorities issue updated and appropriate factors.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Waste Disposal

Solid wastes produced by the Company from production site,
warehouses and offices are stored and disposed of by categories
of “recyclable”, “non-recyclable” and “hazardous waste”. All of
the above categories of wastes are disposed of by a authorized
waste disposal agency. The table below shows the amount of
waste generated and processed by the Company from 2017 to
2019:

RE HeheEr®ms(E)

&R Y w3
REEEERS BB WAEMEENEE
FEZEY - TR E R TR AT Bl R [ fe b e
DEFRRES A LEENEENYIHE
ERAMBEENEERBETREREK - T
RBIARNE T tFE-T-NFPEL
FEBOEENYE:

Amount Collected and Processed FUEREEHE
Types of Wastes? Units 2019 2018 2017 BEYESE B “E-NF ZE-NE —T—tH§
Waste paper Tonne 28.2 31.0 41.7 R4 N 28.2 31.0 41.7
Reusable plastic Tonne 122.4 150.2 175.8 ANBER AWM 122.4 150.2 175.8
Scrap copper Tonne 19.0 24.7 26.6 23] N 19.0 24.7 26.6
Waste wire Tonne 90.4 124.1 161.4 BB N 90.4 124.1 161.4
Hazardous waste Tonne 13.9 1.9 12.3 Bk Em N 13.9 1.9 12.3
Reducing Resource Wastage WML ERRE

The Group mainly utilizes raw materials (copper wire, rubber and
plastic), packaging materials and water for production. Without
compromising our products compliance to strict international
quality standards, we strive to improve the efficiency of resource
use. For example, we break up the used rubber wire casings
for recycling and reuse them in certain products that have
lower quality requirements (such as plug pins covers). We also
reuse the waste rubber particles generated in the injection
molding process to ensure the improved efficiency of use of raw
materials.

B Waste lead bars and tin residues are also recyclables.
Nevertheless, due to their small amount, we do not make such
disclosure in this report.
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In addition, in order to reduce waste, the Group also recycles and
reuses some packaging materials such as wooden cardboard and
cardboard boxes®. The factory in Vietnam has even achieved a
recovery rate of nearly 80% this year. For non-reusable materials,
we engage a third-party disposal service provider to collect
them to ensure proper disposal of waste. Factories in China are
also equipped with water reutilization basin to collect and reuse
the production water from the workshops, saving approximate
10,000 cubic meters of water throughout the year. At the same
time, recycled water is used for the required cooling process at
the factory in Vietnam, dramatically reducing the water needed
for production. The table below sets forth the Company's use
of various resources during the periods from 2017 to 2019:

Consumption

O BEARE - BEIE R R E B
BEME - PIIAARRR L EKEE - B R
FERAEREZRT \KH B E - St A&
A RPEEXE=TREHETRSE
BREZMEUZZRIE - Ribz4  PEA
WHMEEAERERRIOL - WEERNEERKL
EAMAB 2FAEHKBILAK - R
BERETNBRERAKETHENZANT
o RRBDEEMRFHRK - TR QE
E_Z—tHFE2_T-NFRAAZTHERNE
RE:

RE

Resources Usage Indicators Unit 2019 2018 2017 EREAKE g ZE-hE ZB-N\E ZE-tF
Water consumption m? 88,235 77,882 85,650 K2 uAK 88,235 77882 85,650
Water consumption density per tonne of méftonne 78 6.7 6.3 BEESHAEE UAK/LBES 78 6.7 6.3
output?
Packaging material - consumption of Tonne 2125 249.3 3074 BENE N 2125 249.3 3074
cardboard hoxes —BEEFRE
Packaging material - plastic* consumption Tonne 36.0 50.2 315 aENH N 36.0 50.2 315
—BR'ERE
Pollution Prevention S HBE R
In order to comply with the provisions of environmental ARIBEMELERERENEEZETE B

regulations and reduce our direct impact on the environment
during our operation, the Group has implemented the
Environmental Pollution Prevention and Control Procedures and
the Occupational Health, Safety and Environmental Policy in
China and Vietnam respectively to control wastewater, exhaust
gases, noise and waste generated during our operations so as
to ensure our environmental performance complies with the
environmental protection regulations of China and Vietnam. The
environmental management systems of operating sites both
in China and Vietnam have been certified in accordance with
ISO14001.

4 Starting from 2018, the statistics cover the usage of plastic bags
and other plastic packaging materials.
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Our production process discharges no wastewater. Domestic
wastewater mainly comes from canteens and dormitories.
The Group has formulated a series of measures to monitor
and reduce the sewage discharge to ensure that the sewage
discharge value of the factory meets the local discharge
standard of the operation site. In China, the Group has
engaged qualified engineering company to carry out wastewater
treatment projects in accordance with the first-class standard
of Guangdong Province’s Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
to meet discharge standards. Sewage from toilet will be treated
first in the septic tank, then discharged to the municipal sewage
network. We supervise every step of the regular cleaning of the
septic tank performed by the contractor to prevent secondary
pollution caused by the sewage. In Vietnam, the Company
tracks the source of the sewage for the factory to identify
the main cause of the sewage, thereby establishing various
sewage treatment measures, including adding solid filters to
the existing sewage treatment system to reduce the oil content
in the sewage, and disinfecting the sewage via chlorination/
dechlorination. This year, the Group arranged four sampling
inspections of sewage for the factory in Vietnam, and the results
of each inspection met the local standards. With an increasing
number of staff working at the factory, the Group plans to add
sewage treatment facilities to the factory next year to properly
treat domestic sewage and ensure compliance to the local
discharge standards.

Our operations do not involve the discharge of a large amount
of air pollutants. The exhaust gases generated include canteen
soot, plastic workshop dust and a small amount of harmful
gases. After adsorption treatment, the exhaust gas has reached
the emission standards required by the national laws and
regulations of China and Vietnam. In addition, we regularly
examine incoming plastics, rubber and materials containing
organic elements to prevent the release of ozone-depleting
gases after decomposition in the production process. If the
materials are nonconforming, we would make improvement to
meet the requirements of the relevant regulations. This year, the
Group arranged air emission tests for Viethamese factory, and
the results of each test complied with local standards.

Some machines in the company’s factory buildings make noise.
In order to protect the health of employees, the Company
instructs employees in charge of noise-related processes to
wear earplugs to mitigate the impact of noise on the human
body. We regularly check the noise level of major sites in the
Chinese factory according to the Emission Standard for Industrial
Enterprises Noise at Boundary of China. No noise levels have
been found to exceed the regulations’ requirement and have
any negative impact on the communities in the vicinity of the
factory. Only some processes in Vietnamese factory produce
noise. The overall noise level of the factory is within the local
standards.
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RIE dHegkE0®mE(E)
Employees

Employees are valuable assets for the development and success
of the Company. As we give the first and foremost consideration
to the safety and health of employees, we are committed
to improving occupational safety and health management in
order to provide a safe working environment for employees.
The Company formulates a people-oriented human resources
management policy to protect the benefits of employees and
provide them with fair promotion and training opportunities.
At the same time, the Company improves cohesiveness of
employee and understands their opinions through various
communication channels so as to promote the long-term
development of the Company. As at 31st December 2019, the
Group employed 1,115 full time employees primarily responsible
for management, sales and marketing, shipping, procurement,
finance and accounting, engineering and production.

Occupational safety and health

The safety and health of employees are crucial to a productive
workplace. Therefore, we formulate policies, objectives,
management systems and operating procedures regarding safety.
We are committed to providing a safe working environment
for employees in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Work Safety, the Regulations of Guangdong Province on
Production Safety, and the Occupational Safety and Health
Law of Vietnam. The Group formulates the relevant rules and
regulations on production safety management, clearly setting
out the responsibilities of the safety production committees,
departments at various levels and safety production management
personnel of factories in China and Vietnam. In addition, the
Group sets up a work safety and health management team
under the responsibility system for safe production, consisting of
employees with rich relevant qualifications and experience from
various departments, and the team is responsible for supervising
the work environment and health conditions in the production
workshop and the safety compliance of staff. In order to maintain
a sound safety production accountability system, we regularly
conduct safety production accountability assessments on our
workshops and provide comprehensive safety training for our
employees during quarterly safety production meetings.

We implement the relevant management procedures for
hazardous chemicals and oil products to prevent adverse
effects on people and the environment during the procurement,
transportation, storage, use, and disposal of hazardous chemicals
and oil products. In addition, the person responsible for the
handling of hazardous chemicals must receive training to obtain
general knowledge of management of storage of hazardous
substances, and must be accompanied by safety management
personnel when he/she is handling hazardous chemicals.
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We establish a series of measures to deal with and control
emergencies, including contingency plans for accidents such as
fire, typhoon and rainstorm, and leakage of hazardous goods.
Under the safe production responsibility system, the Group
establishes different emergency response teams including fire
brigade to respond to any accident immediately after it occurs
on the premise of safety in order to minimize the impact.
At the same time, the Group regularly provides the relevant
teams with various trainings such as firefighting training, first
aid and rescue training, chemical accident response training to
ensure those teams have sufficient skills to deal with accidents
and ensure the safety and health of employees. In addition,
we provide emergency training and drills annually to enhance
employees’ safety awareness and incident handling capabilities,
and communicate important safety issues to employees
through bulletin boards, thus reducing the chance and impact of
accidents.

During the reporting year, we did not record any work-related
fatalities, and the number of working days lost due to work-
related injuries was 360 days (2018: 422 days). We will continue
to monitor and review the level of work-related injuries, carry out
regular inspections and rectification of potential safety threats
to ensure the safety of our employees in the workplace.

Employment Policy

To facilitate a more effective and systematic management of our
human resources, the Company has formulated an employment
policy that adheres to the Labour Law and the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and Vietnam’s Labor Law and Child Protection
Law as well as other relevant regulations and takes into account
practical circumstances, to serve as a framework for setting
staff remuneration and benefits. The wages of production line
personnel are calculated on piece-rate basis who can earn more
from extra work. We pay social insurance premiums for our staff
members and offer benefits such as annual leave, meal, lunch
subsidies, accommodation and workwear. Those who work
overtime on working days, weekends and statutory holidays
can earn 1.5 to 3 times of the basic hourly wage rate. The
Group pays their employees on the basis of a standard wage
not lower than the minimum wage specified in local regulations
and standards at the operation site, and the wages are subject
to adjustment from time to time on the basis of the wage
regulations, corporate profits and personal performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE dHegkE0®mE(E)

As a company that adheres to the principle of equal opportunity,
we hire people based on merits with zero tolerance of any
differential treatment based on gender, age and race. In order
to avoid the employment of forced labor and child labor®, the
Group formulates the Policy on Preventing Child Labor and the
Policy on Preventing Forced Labor. We ascertain the identity and
age of the applicants during the recruitment process. The group
will not employ applicants younger than the legal working age in
the locality. In addition, the Group does not tolerate occurrence
of any forced labor and encourages employees to report related
violations. The Group establishes the procedures for handling
and following up the relevant complaints.

ERBTFERERAOATF - HPBAMES
%ﬁTTﬁ?%i@ﬂEﬂﬁEAIE%U Fi LR
ZRFE -  RRERABRESTIRETS - KE
A TKERETIBRR)M(H S RBEBR)
APEREBEEERRBENT HRFR
SE-ZTeRERFRENRELA /XIf’Eim
MEEE - B EEB é%fiﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ
MBEREL  BETRBFEERRBEN - E
ERERERRETFEERREMBRF -

Number of Staff 2019 2018 2017 ETI¥HE —E-NF ZZE-N\F ZE—-t#f
By gender BERES

Male 352 379 445 =2 352 379 445
Female 763 551 587 X 763 551 587
By ranking BREES

Senior 8 9 8 SEN 8 9 8
Intermediate 147 156 62 R 147 156 62
Junior 960 765 962 IER 960 765 962
By age RERE S

<30 413 180 239 <30 413 180 239
30-50 652 700 749 30-50 652 700 749
>50 50 50 44 >50 50 50 44

Development and Training Opportunities

The Company provides training opportunities for employees,
and formulates corresponding annual training plans in light
of the development needs of each department every year to
improve the professional skills of employees. We also regularly
review the performance of employees through the employee
job evaluation system to provide promotion opportunities for
outstanding employees so as to help employees develop and
give full play to their abilities and retain talents for the Group.
We hope to continuously improve the performance of employees
and promote the development of the Company.

This refers to any individual less than 16 years of age in China
and 18 years of age in Vietnam.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

We offer internal and external training opportunities for our
employees. To facilitate new employees to understand the
Company’s background, rules and regulations, job duties,
product identification, quality policy, restriction of hazardous
substances (RoHS) and occupational safety, etc., all are
required to receive induction training. In addition to induction
training, the Group formulates annual training plans for various
departments, in which the corresponding training items are
defined for employees, in order to ensure that employees have
sufficient skills for fulfilling responsibilities of their jobs, and also
to enhance employees’ awareness of the Company’s code and
job-related risks. For example, the Company invites qualified
professional third party to provide trainings for employees on
the operation of specified instruments to further improve the
professional skills of employees, and help employees meet the
requirements and challenges of their jobs. The Company also
provides courses such as courses in connection with basic
ISO knowledge, site management, firefighting and first aid
training to satisfy the functional and technical needs of various
departments. Effectiveness of training implemented by various
departments is evaluated by the Administration Department.

Average Number of Training
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Hours for Employees® 2019 2018 2017 EETHZINE —T-NE —Z-\F —E—-+t%f
By gender Sk )
Male 25.5 32.0 29.2 s 25.5 32.0 29.2
Female 16.0 34.2 30.4 Z 16.0 34.2 30.4
By ranking RERE S
Senior 1.0 14.0 85.0 =R 1.0 14.0 85.0
Intermediate 26.4 4.9 344 H R 26.4 4.9 34.4
Junior 18.0 33.2 29.7 IE 18.0 33.2 29.7
Communication with and Caring of Employees ETEBEKRBEE
Through existing communication channels and mechanisms BEBBITHEBREMES(WER %) B
(such as suggestion box), employees are free to express their I—IJ/AE R EEEBROLAE If’E?éi‘% =

opinions on various business aspects and daily works. If an
employee’s proposal or suggestion is considered constructive by
the Company or adopted by relevant department, the employee
will be commended and rewarded.

We regularly organize events to promote unity among our
employees, boost morale and a sense of belonging towards
the Company. For example, we, along with our employees,
celebrate the Spring Festival at various operating locations and
to thank employees for their contributions to the Company. On
the gala, we also present the Annual Outstanding Employee
Award to recognise the outstanding contributions of the winning
employee.

5 The figures represent the total number of training hours by
employment category divided by the number of staff members who
received training and were still employed by Perennial Group as at
31st December of the reporting year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE dHegkE0®mE(E)
In Vietnam, employees formally establish representative

labor union. In addition to meeting with the management to
discuss matters related to employee benefits, the labor union
representatives also organize regular employee activities. This
year, the labor union of our employees in Vietnam and labor
unions of other enterprises jointly organized a regulation quiz and
equipment use competition to enhance employees’ awareness
of the work rules and work safety. Nearly 50% of the employees
of Vietnamese factory participated in the activity.

Operation

As a manufacturer, we are committed to establishing and
maintaining good and ethical long-term collaboration with
customers and suppliers. We value opinions of our customers,
and we are committed continuously improving the quality of our
products and operating our business in a responsible manner.

Product Quality

The Group formulates strict internal quality control procedures
to monitor the quality of raw materials, production process
and product. The Group has obtained the ISO 9001 Quality
Management System Certification for the factory in Vietnam.
Our strict requirements on the product quality are the reasons
why our various products are recognized by different countries.
And in order to deliver top quality and safe products to our
customers, all raw materials are also required to meet product
safety and environmental requirements (e.g. RoHS). The Group
uses wires that contain at least 99.96% of copper, which allow
our products to have high energy efficiency. The quality control
procedures of the Group also require to ensure the product
consistency, and prevent and correct non-conforming products.
The Company conducts comprehensive quality inspections of
all products, and only the products that pass the inspection can
enter the next process.

In addition to product quality, we also run safety test on
our products. The Company carries our high-voltage safety
test on the wire and power cord products, and we require a
100% passing rate. The testing centre of the Company also
conducts reliability test on materials and finished products every
three months, including plastic aging and tensile testing. The
Company's “Safety and Reliability Policy” guarantees that our
product meets the requirements of the safety certification body
and requires the Company to provide guidelines for safe use
so that users can use the Company’s products at ease. During
the reporting year there were no reports on sold or delivered
products that had to be recalled for safety and health reasons.
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The Group has formulated the Control Procedures for Non-
conforming Products to strictly supervise and follow up all
nonconforming products. As stipulated by the Company, the
relevant department shall, within 24 hours after it founds any
nonconforming product, carry out preliminary correction, and
if such nonconformity involves several departments, the main
responsible department shall organize cross-department quality
meetings with the relevant departments to discuss and identify
solutions. The nonconforming product that is initially corrected
can only enter the next process after passing the inspection. If
the products are still not up to standard after such handling, we
will dispose of such problematic products and consider revising
the ancillary quality system. However, if the product is found
to be seriously nonconforming or fails to meet the standards
for many times during the manufacturing process, the on-site
responsible person from the Quality Control Department is
allowed to suspend the relevant production process, analyze the
causes of the problem together with the Production Department,
Engineering Department and other relevant departments,
formulate solutions, and resume production only after the quality
problem is controlled or solved.

Customer relationship

We value the relationship with our customers and actively
listen to and follow up their opinions and demands. We have
established a sound complaint handling procedure. The head
of the Quality Control Department shall, within 24 hours upon
receipt of complaint information, analyze and follow up the
received customer complaints, identify the root cause of the
problem within 3 working days, formulate corrective actions
within 7 working days, submit the solutions and results to
relevant personnel, and then determine the solution with the
customer. In addition to solving the problems raised by the
customer, we also conduct follow-up checks on 3 batches of
similar types of products, in order to prevent recurrence of
the same problem. We distribute satisfaction survey forms to
our customers in the fourth quarter each year, to collect their
views on the Company’s products in respect of quality, service,
delivery time, etc. Notwithstanding small number of complaints
regarding product appearance (15 cases in total) (2018: 12
cases), all of them were properly handled according to the
customer complaint handling procedures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -MHERERAMEE)

Confidential Information of Customers and
Intellectual Property

In day-to-day business, the Group has occasional access to trade
confidential and non-public technical information of customers.
We understand the importance of strictly protecting customers’
confidential information for the reputation and evaluation of
the Group. To this end, the Company has established a strict
confidentiality system to protect the information security of
customers. We also require our employees to comply with
the relevant regulations of the Company and perform the duty
of confidentiality relating to their work. Any employee who is
found to violate the confidentiality system will be punished
in accordance with relevant local laws and regulation at the
operation location.

The Group also values the protection of intellectual property.
We have the right to apply for corresponding patents for all
inventions, technological innovations, products or formulas
created and developed by employees during their service. At the
same time, we will never infringe upon the intellectual property
of any other enterprise. Any employee who conducts any such
infringement is subject to severe punishment.

Ethics

The Group attaches great importance to the ethics of its
employees and it is committed to establishing a clean
corporate culture. Each employee is required to sign and
agree to comply with the Code of Ethics immediately after
he/she enters the Company. Through reward and punishment
measures, we convey to our employees the message of
adherence to business ethics. To further prevent conflicts
of interest, we require employees responsible for sales and
procurement to disclose whether they have any relationship
other than business relationship with any existing supplier or
customer. The Company also regularly engages professional
third-party consultant to assist in evaluating the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control measures in order to ensure
the management measures are effectively implemented, thus
safeguarding the Company's requirements for ethics. Our
operations comply with the laws and regulations on prevention
of bribery in the operating area. During the reporting year, we
did not have any corruption cases.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group regulates the procurement process through the
formulation of the Procurement Procedures to ensure that the
selected suppliers continuously provide conforming materials
to meet our production needs. In addition to evaluating the
production capacity of suppliers, we also evaluate and select
new suppliers based on their background, product quality,
price, and quality and environment management system. We
conduct simple monthly assessment for our existing suppliers,
and require the suppliers receiving a poor evaluation result
to make improvements. The general manager of the Group
decides whether to reevaluate the qualification of or disqualify
the suppliers with poor performance and of no signs of
improvement. At the same time, the Company also requires
suppliers to complete trade safety investigations as required by
the local customs.

Apart from compliance, material quality and service quality of
the suppliers, we also attach importance to their environmental
performance. In order to monitor the environmental performance
of the Group’s supply chain, we require suppliers to strictly
comply with our environmental protection requirements, and
express requirements and carry out investigation or assessment
with respect to the environmental conditions of designated
suppliers in accordance with ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System. We have the following environmental
requirements for suppliers:

- Provision of environmentally-friendly products which cause
no adverse impact to the environment

- Proper handling of all types of gases, liquid and solid
wastes produced during production

- Application of clean production technology

= Minimal application of dangerous raw materials during
production

- Minimal use of packaging materials

- Minimal exhaust emission and noise pollution by motor
vehicles or during production

- Compliance with relevant requirements of the Company

RE HeheEr®ms(E)
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In order to monitor the compliance of suppliers, we conduct
environmental audit on designated suppliers. If the supplier fails
to meet our environmental requirements, we would instruct such
supplier to make rectification, and if necessary, the in-charge
leaders of the supplier and us organize and hold a meeting to
seek solutions. The supplier will be disqualified if the cases are
considered to be serious.

REBHREENAREBERN  RASHEEMH
EEETHERRREEZ - SHEBRERE
BAMBRFRER  ZAMSRBIMLFTE o=
FARESTTEREHB I ARH RS BESE
AlgWBUE BB ER -

Number of Suppliers 2019 2018 2017 HERHE —E-hE ZE-N\FE ZE-tF

By region BHEE S

Hong Kong 70 68 35 5 70 68 35

Mainland China 185 180 120 FEIR 185 180 120

Vietnam 4 N/A N/A fid=] 4 TE A 7~ i A

Other areas 15 15 i Hivi & 15 15 11
Charitable Activities YN |

In addition to business development, we are also committed
to participate in the charity-related business and pay attention
to communities in need in the society through donations and
volunteer bodies. During the year, the Group donated money to
Guizhou Cultural Heritage and Rural Development Foundation
to support the promotion of local rural education and training,
develop cultural and historical projects, improve medical and
public health projects, with an aim at improving local livelihood
and life quality. At the same time, the Group donated money
to Hunan Ningxiang No.1 Middle School Education Foundation
to sponsor its Yuehua Scientific Management Award, thus
encouraging development of the young. The Group also donated
to the Correctional Services Children’s Education Trust, in the
hope that those recipients will have more learning opportunities
and they will make contributions to the society in future. In
addition to assisting the community development in China
and Hong Kong, we also made donations to the government
of Quang Ngai province of Vietham to provide assistance to
poor families in the region and improve the livelihood of the
community. During the reporting year, we donated a total of
HK$1,465,000 (2018: HK$689,934).
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Chapter(s)
General Containing
Disclosure Relevant -RBER HEHEER
and KPls Description Information Remarks BRENEE ik NEH i
Environmental RB5
Aspect A1: Emissions BEA: HFRBY
General Disclosure: —RERE:
Information on the policies and Environment EHRERBEREHN  RMK RE
compliance with relevant laws and Riss AEREEEER
regulations that have a significant MOEEENHE  RETHEN
impact on the issuer relating to ANEEARZENEEZZRAN
air and greenhouse gas emissions, HER -
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
KPI A1.1 The types of / As the Company's BREW BEmERRAE / AR ZEBT
emissions and business does not RIEAL HmEE BRAEERS
respective emissions involve the emission AR b
data of air pollutants HETTEE -
in large amounts,
such figures are not
disclosed herein.
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas Environment BREN BRERELHNE BR
emissions in total - Energy BIEAL2 REE - BRER
and intensity Conservation
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous Environment BRER MEXREREN B
waste produced and - Pollution RIEAL3 BEREE ROEE DG
intensity Prevention and
Treatment
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous ~ Environment BAREw MELRZREN BHR
waste produced (in - Pollution RIZAL4 BE(UMHE) R - 54 ma
tonnes) and, where Prevention and (WER)EE
appropriate, intensity ~ Treatment
KPI A1.5 Description of Environment The Company's HRER HLREHERER BB KRRz EBA
measures to mitigate - Pollution business does not EEALS ERRFAERR -54We  PRAEZRS
emissions and Prevention and involve the emission EME -
results achieved Treatment of air pollutants in
large amounts.
KPI A1.6 Description of Environment BREN HLEBEERE BE
how hazardous - Pollution RIZA16 EEENNAE - - ALENA
and non-hazardous Prevention and BEEEENER
wastes are handled,  Treatment RAEKE

reduction initiatives
and results achieved
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General Disclosure: —BEE
Policies on the efficient use of Environment BHRERERNEE - R
resources.
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect Environment BREm RENESNE BHE
energy consumption - Energy EZA2 BR/GEEER - H08R
by type (e.g. Conservation (E - Jakid) &
electricity, gas or oil) EEMTETR
in total (kWh in'000s) BB REE
and intensity
KPI A2.2 Water consumption  Environment BRER BRKEREE BE
in total and intensity - Reducing RiZA2.2 - RPERRE
Resource
Wastage
KPI A2.3 Description Environment BREN HRREARE B
of energy use - Energy EEA23 FERMBHRE -HHER
efficiency initiatives Conservation
and results achieved
KPI A2.4 Description of Environment BREm HCKBERKE B3
whether there is any - Reducing BIEA24 TUHEAEE - RPERRE
issue in sourcing Resource AR AR K&
water that is fit Wastage FERMBHR
for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives
and results achieved
KPI A2.5 Total packaging Environment BREN HRmAReEN B5R
material used for - Reducing BIZA25 BB E(UEs - APERRE
finished products Resource B k(mER) &
(in tonnes) and, Wastage EEBMGE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

if applicable, with
reference to per unit
produced

General Disclosure: Policies on
minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and
natural resources.

KPI'A3.1

Description of the
significant impacts
of activities on the
environment and
natural resources
and the actions
taken to manage
them

/

As the Company's
business does

not pose a
significant impact
on its surrounding
ecological
environment and the
supply of natural
resources, no such
disclosure is made
herein.
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R g hkEARE (B)
Chapter(s)
General Containing
Disclosure Relevant -REER HERBER
and KPIs Description Information Remarks BRENEE B WEE s
Social e
Employment and Labor Practices ERREIER
Aspect B1: Employment EmEB1: B
General Disclosure: Information on  Staff —RBE:AEFMREE BB BT
the policies and compliance with = Employment REF  TENE - RE T - EBYE
relevant laws and regulations that Policy g Sl RIEEUREMEE
have a significant impact on the REFNEE: RETHETAR
issuer relating to compensation EAYENEBEERANNE
and dismissal, recruitment and B o
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by  Staff BRER ZER - ERFE BT
gender, employment - Employment RIEB11 B ERENR - BRIE
type, age group and  Policy BEOMERLE
geographical region
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover  / The figures are BAREN &R ERAR IIEER AR
rate by gender, considered sensitive HiZB1.2 RtRESEE e HATHR
age group and and not disclosed MALE B
geographical region herein.
Aspect B2: Health and Safety EEB2: #RER2
General Disclosure: Information on  Staff —BEE FERELZETERE BT
the policies and compliance with = Occupational RRABEEREBEURENG - BERER
relevant laws and regulations that Safety and FOETHETABERYENNE £R
have a significant impact on the Health BEERABINER -
issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate Staff BREw AIfFBEmRET BT
of work-related - Occupational E1ZB2.1 MABRLE -BER2R
fatalities Safety and f B
Health
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to Staff BRER RIBE4IE BT
work injury - Occupational 1K1Z82.2 =k -BEZER
Safety and R
Health
KPI B2.3 Description of Staff BRER HFRANEE 8T
occupational health - Occupational #EEBR23 BRAZZER  -BEZ2R
and safety measures  Safety and URIEEHTRE #E
adopted, how they Health BH%

are implemented and
monitored
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RE - HegkEamsE (&)

Chapter(s)
General Containing
Disclosure Relevant -REER HERBER
and KPIs Description Information Remarks BRENEE B WEL s
Aspect B3: Development and Training EEB3: B R
General Disclosure: Policies on Staff —BEE EERAEERTIE BT
improving employees’ knowledge - Development BENHDARRENIR - Bk - FB RE
and skills for discharging duties and Training BIES - #e
at work. Description of training opportunities
activities.
KPI B3.1 The percentage of  / No disclosure BRER EHFIRESES REBRE
employees trained HRIEB31 ArmRiEER
by gender and att
employee category
KPI B3.2 The average training Staff BRER RHAIREEER BT
hours completed - Development iE18B3.2 25 BEEET - FRRE
per employee by and Training KEIMTFARYE #Ke
gender and employee  opportunities
category
Aspect B4: Labor Standards EBEB4: BT %E
General Disclosure: Information on  Staff —REE:EBEMEEIL®RMS BT
the policies and compliance with = Employment THBE  RETHEOTATEA - ERHEE
relevant laws and regulations that Policy TENEBLERANNEH -
have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labor.
KPI B4.1 Description of Staff BRER Hilk T REEN BT
measures to - Employment EI1EB4 MEBABEET - EREX
review employment  Policy REAST
practices to avoid
child and forced
labor
KPI B4.2 Description of steps ~ Staff BRER HUEERERE BT
taken to eliminate - Employment E1EB42 REEREERR - BEREX
such practices when  Policy FEImE SR
discovered
Operating Practices BEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management EEBS EHEEE
General Disclosure: Policies on Operation The Group has no —BBER ERAEENORERE BB EEYEERM
managing environmental and social - Supply Chain  policy on managing EEBUE - -HEREE EREJMEEBRS
risks of the supply chain. Management  the social risks of BUR
supply chains.
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers Operation BREN RRENNEE S8
by geographical - Supply Chain E1ZB5. EEE -fEEERE

region

Management
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RE HeheEr®ms(E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing
Disclosure Relevant -REER HERBER
and KPIs Description Information Remarks BRENEE B WEE s
KPI B5.2 Description of Operation BREN HlEEERGE 28
practices relating - Supply Chain IR1%B5.2 BEED - MAR - HEEER
to engaging Management TREEN R E

suppliers, number
of suppliers where
the practices are
being implemented,
how they are
implemented and
monitored

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
General Disclosure: Information on
the policies and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of
redress.

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total
products sold or
shipped subject to
recalls for safety and
health reasons

KPI B6.2 Number of products
- and service-related
complaints received
and how they are
dealt with

KPI B6.3 Description of
practices relating
to observing
and protecting
intellectual property
rights

KPI B6.4 Description of
quality assurance
process and recall
procedures

KPI B6.5 Description of
consumer data
protection and
privacy policies,
how they are
implemented and
monitored

Operation
= Product
Quality

Operation
- Product
Quality

Operation
- Product
Quality

Operation

- Confidential
Information
of Customers
and Intellectual
Property

Operation
- Product
Quality

Operation

- Confidential
Information of
Customers and
Intellectual

BEA UARBE
EhlsaiThER
&

EHB6:EmEM
—HBE:ERMREERNRY 28
MEREZE EE BERL -EmER
BEENRBRAENRE R
BTHRETABEAFENMAE
EERAEDINESR -

BRER EEJCDEXER B
12861 BETARREAR -ERER
B2 thifl /2 B
BOL

BRER  REERERRR 28
EEB62  BORFHAUR -EREE
i apilS

BREN  HORAERRE 28
EEB63  ABEREHEN -BEERE
&l ERMAE
EfR

BRay  HigEnTeR 28
ERB64  REREOWERF -ERZER

BiEER  HIRBEEAR 28

BiEB6S  BRABHE M -BEER
REBRTREE EHNAZ
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RIE dHegkE0®mE(E)

Chapter(s)

General Containing

Disclosure Relevant -REER HERBER

and KPIs Description Information Remarks BRENEE B WEL s

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption BEB7: RES

General Disclosure: Information on  Operation —BRE FENLER 9% 28

the policies and compliance with - Ethics BERAZENBRERETHE - EERT

relevant laws and regulations that TABEAYENHBZERR

have a significant impact on the BIavEH -

issuer relating to bribery, extortion,

fraud and money laundering.

KPI B7.1 Number of Operation BREN RERBHERT 28
concluded legal - Ethics BB ASERBRLY - EEERT
cases regarding BRENBHHD
corrupt practices KUHEERFA
brought against R
the issuer or its
employees during
the reporting period
and the outcomes of
the cases

KPI B7.2 Description of Operation BREX W BHEERE 28
preventive measures - Ethics 1872 WEF - AREE - EBERT
and whistle- WORERAA
blowing procedures,
how they are
implemented and
monitored

Community HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment EEBS: HERE

General Disclosure: Policies Charitable —BRERFEMUHR2ERTE REEE

on community engagement to Activities REMEHERENBREER

understand the needs of the EHEEREMEFRONE

communities where the issuer

operates and to ensure its activities

take into consideration the

communities' interests.

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of Charitable BREX EANEREE AREH
contribution Activities E1EB8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources Charitable BAREN EEFEBHYA RRED
contributed to the  Activities 151%B8.2 AR

focus area
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHRE

Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Directors confirm that the Company has fully complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) attached to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as Appendix 14,
and adopted recommended best practices set out in the Code
whenever appropriate. During the year, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise,
Chairman, was unable to hold a meeting with the Independent
Non-Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive
Directors due to other prior business engagements.

The Board

The Board’'s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity,
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities
include, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring
prudent conduct of operations within laws and approved policies,
ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of
affairs. Day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division who
are given clear directions as to his/her powers and are required
to report back to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board
and delegated to the management are reviewed periodically. The
Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility
for the proper direction of the Company. The Company has
formal service contract with each Director setting out the key
terms and conditions of his/her appointment.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEEARBSE (E)

The Board (Continued)

The Board currently consists of eight (8) members whose
details are set out on pages 52 to 54 of this report. It meets
quarterly and holds specific meetings as and when they are
deemed necessary. The Board held four (4) meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2019. Notices of Board meetings
were given to the Directors at least 14 days prior to the date
of the meetings with the agenda and any accompanying Board
papers sent at least three days before the date of the meetings.
All Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. Minutes of the Board meetings and
committee meetings, recording in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, are kept by the Company
Secretary and sent to the Directors or the committee members
(as appropriate) for their comment and records within reasonable
time after the meeting is held. They are also available for
inspection by the Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director. A record of the Directors’ attendance at
Board meetings is set out on page 48 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to the Directors. The Directors
are also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group's
operational facilities and meet with the management to gain a
better understanding of its business operations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the year, all Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs
Mon Chung Hung, Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Mon Wai Ki, Vicky,
Mon Tiffany, Koo Di An, Louise, Lau Chun Kay, Lee Chung
Nai, Jones and Chung Kit Ying, received regular briefings and
updates on the Group's business, operations, risk management
and corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes
to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group were
provided to the Directors. They also attended regulatory update
sessions and seminars on relevant topics. All Directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
record pursuant to the Code.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
and each Board Committee also has access to independent
professional advice where appropriate.
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The Board (Continued)

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that
of the Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities
are clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman
manages the Board and is responsible for ensuring that adequate
information is provided to the Directors in a timely manner and
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for implementing strategies, policies, and for conducting the
Group’s businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at
each annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-
election. Notwithstanding that the Non-Executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term of one to three years, they are also
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
as other Directors do. To enhance accountability, any further
re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, is subject to
a separate resolution to be passed by the shareholders. In
addition, Directors who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment according to the Company’s Bye-
laws.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
confirms receipt of a written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of his
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’'s and the Group's performance,
position and prospects. The Directors should prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.
The Board’'s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extends to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EFRAME (H)

Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of
them having specific terms of reference, to consider matters
relating to specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where
appropriate, to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters.
Details of these committees and their principal terms of
reference are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its
current members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the
Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditors; meeting
with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of
the audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so
by the external auditors; reviewing the interim financial report
and annual consolidated financial statements before they are
submitted to the Board; discussing problems and reservations
arising from the interim review and final audit, and any other
matters the external auditors may wish to discuss, and reviewing
the external auditors’ letter to the management and the
management’s response; considering any major investigation
findings on internal control and risk management systems
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
the management’s response to these findings and reviewing
arrangements which employees may use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control, risk management systems or other matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the
external auditors. The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings
during the year ended 31st December 2019. An attendance
record of its members at the Audit Committee meetings is set
out on page 48 of this report.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim financial report
and the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended
31st December 2019 and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and made recommendations to
the Board. The Board has engaged an outsourced consultant to
perform internal control review services for the Group.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the
outsourced internal audit consultant, reviews the reports on all
audits performed and monitors the audit performance. The Audit
Committee also reviews the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the outsourced internal audit
functions.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st
November 2005. Its current members include three (3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive
Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policies, determining the
specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors and
senior management, including terms of salary, discretionary
bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments and other long-term incentive schemes, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors and senior management. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out its
authority and responsibilities are available on the Company's
website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Remuneration Committee met twice (2) in the year of
2019. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors. An attendance record of its members at
the Remuneration Committee meetings is set out on page 48
of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEEARBSE (E)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who
are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including,
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
backgrounds, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
on a regular basis, reviewing the candidates’ qualification and
competence and the policy on board diversity, assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and the requirement on board
diversity, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and
transparent. Having taken into account the above objective
criteria, the Nomination Committee was of the view that the
Company has a diverse Board. The revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee setting out its authority and
responsibilities are available on the Company’s website at
http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Nomination Committee met once (1) in the year of 2019.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them
in nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that
such criteria should include the candidates’ professional
background, their financial and commercial experience and
their past track record with other listed companies (if any).
Candidates who satisfy the relevant criteria are then short-listed
by the chairman of the Nomination Committee before their
nominations are proposed to the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee subsequently meets to select the final
candidates and submit its recommendation to the Board for
its final approval. An attendance record of its members at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out on page 48 of this
report.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members include four (4) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Ms

MON Chung Hung
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
. MON Wai Ki, Vicky

Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i)
reviewing corporate communication issued by the Company
so as to ensure compliance in every respect with the listing
requirements contained in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing
transactions entered into by the Company so as to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Company whether of Hong Kong or elsewhere. To
enhance corporate governance, the Compliance Committee
was also delegated with the responsibilities of (i) developing
and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(iii) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures
of the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the
year ended 31st December 2019. During the meeting, the
committee members discussed the recent amendments to the
Listing Rule relating to corporate governance and resolved that
more resources should be allocated for meeting the increasingly
stringent requirements of the regulatory authorities. It was also
suggested all future amendments to the Listing Rules should
be circulated to members of the senior management so that
they all understand and can help the Company to comply with
its obligations under the Listing Rules and seminars on Listing
Rules updates and corporate governance practices should be
arranged for members of the senior management and other
interested Directors. An attendance record of its members at
the Compliance Committee meeting is set out on page 48 of
this report.
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TEEARBSE (E)

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board has engaged an outsourced internal audit consultant
to perform independent internal control review services.
Thereafter, the outsourced consultant has assisted the Group to
perform a review of the effectiveness of internal control system
for certain selected processes. The assessment results and
proposed improvement recommendations were reported to the
Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular,
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function. Based on the
findings of the outsourced internal audit consultant and the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considers that
the Group’s internal control system is effective. Areas for
improvement identified and appropriate measures taken so as
to provide assurance that key business and operational risks are
identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide
effective internal control are as follows:

(@) a comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial
information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities
are documented and communicated; and

(c) system and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that
may have an impact on the Group.
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Risk Management Function

The Group has established a robust risk management
framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee
and Senior Management of the Group. The Board determines the
nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility
for monitoring the overall effectiveness of risk management.
The Group identifies key risks that would adversely affect
the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and
prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria. Risk mitigation plans are then established by the risk
owners to manage the risks to acceptable level.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting. The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors,
taking into account factors such as the performance and
quality of the audit and the objectivity and independence
of auditors. The existing auditors of the Company are
PricewaterhouseCoopers who were first appointed in 1997.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group was charged HK$1,506,000 and HK$1,076,000 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2019. The non-
auditing services mainly consist of taxation services.

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the Board has adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
complied with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies have also been used and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 60 and 66 of this
annual report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ and employees’ securities transactions on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
they had complied with the required standards of the said code
during the vyear.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant
to the Company’s Bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend
and vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead
of him. In addition, shareholders who hold not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company shall have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not within 21
days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3)
months from the said date.

Moreover, shareholders who hold not less than one-twentieth
of the paid up capital of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to put forward
a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at an annual general meeting. The Company shall
not be bound to give notice of the proposed resolution or
circulate a statement with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution to shareholders unless (a) a copy of
the requisition signed by the requisitionists, or two or more
copies which between them contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists, is deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six (6) weeks before the meeting in the
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition and (b) there is deposited or tendered with the
requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving effect thereto. If, however, after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at
the registered office of the Company, an annual general meeting
is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the copy has
been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the time
required as referred to above shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the
Chairmen, any member from the respective committees, must
attend the annual general meetings of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. External auditors shall also be invited to
attend the Company’s annual general meetings and are available
to assist the Directors in addressing queries from shareholders
relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and
content of their auditors’ report.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a
separate resolution would be proposed. Resolutions put to the
vote at any general meeting (other than those on procedural and
administrative matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding
the conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting, and questions (if any)
from shareholders regarding the voting procedures would be
answered.

Investor Relations

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses,
financial information and particulars of Directors are posted.
The Company’'s publications, including press releases,
announcements, annual and interim reports, shareholders
circulars are being made available on this website (http:/
perennial.todayir.com).

In addition, shareholders who have any enquiries regarding the
Company may send their enquiries in writing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary who will then forward the same to
the Board and/or the relevant Board committees for response
(where appropriate). The above policy will be reviewed on
a regular basis to ensure effective communication with the
shareholders.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board, Audit EEREETE  BERXZEES ¥
Committee, Remuneration Committee, MZEE  REZEES  ERZ
Nomination Committee, Compliance EE€RRE RSz HETE
Committee and General Meetings
Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Board Committee = Committee = Committee =~ Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Eze ERZEe ¥MZEe REZEE ERZEg BE
g% gE g% 28 e% g
Total number of meetings held ~ HZE-ZT— 145
during the year ended +-A=+-A
31st December 2019 LFEERETZ
2RLY 4 2 2 1 1 1
Number of meetings attended: HE &2 K&
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung RRELE
(Chief Executive Officer & (TRAEH R
Deputy Chairman) ey, 4 NATER NATHEA NATER 1 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco B EE 4 NATEBE NATER NATEA 1 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky LEBTT 4 NATER NATEERE NATHES 1 1
Ms. MON Tiffany HERBRKL 4 NATER NATER NATER 1 1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BRZOL(£E)
(Chairman) 4 2 2 1 1 1
Independent Non-Executive ~BUEHTEE
Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay IR EE 4 2 2 1 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones ZRERE 3 1 0 0 0 0
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying BRLLT 4 2 2 1 1 1




DIRECTORS" REPORT
EERSE

The Board submits their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2019.

Principal Activities and Geographical

Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by

geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
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A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for TXRBRAEBEBETRAFAZEE EER
the last five financial years is set out below: BEME:
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NEF —N\F —tF ZE—RF —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHETT FAET FAET FHET
Revenue g 301,357 355,744 364,401 359,035 401,669
(Loss)/profit for the 2F(ER)/
year i A (13,198) (1,760) 19,283 14,622 11,688
Total assets mEE 714,879 732,950 692,770 637,266 642,719
Total liabilities waE (152,355) (154,865) (130,353) (132,796) (136,335)
Total equity 1BRE 562,524 578,085 562,417 504,470 506,384
Analysis of the Group’s Performance AEBZERRRDN
An analysis of the Group's performance is set forth in the ZAEBEZEBKRBONMBNFEEZFSH ZE

Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.
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EEHE(E)

Major Suppliers and Customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable

EEFRHEER
¢¢EW$EIZ£§ﬁEﬁ&Eﬁ BAfE 51
ERHH

to the Group's major suppliers and customers respectively, TR ZEBREEASEAOT
classified by individual entity, are as follows:
%
Purchases i
- the largest supplier - RRHEER 22.2%
- five largest suppliers combined - ERHER 62.1%
Sales &
- the largest customer -RAEFP 26.3%
- five largest customers combined - RAREF 68.7%
None of the directors, their close associates (as defined in the EZ -  FE2EBEZHMEALT(EER LTHI)

Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 67 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for the Group’'s main
operations are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share issued in the year

No new shares were issued during the year. Details of shares
issued as at 31st December 2019 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31st December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the laws of
Bermuda, amounted to HK$23,205,000. In addition, the
Company's contributed surplus, amounting to HK$62,548,000 as
at 31st December 2019, is available for distribution. However,
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of the contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the net realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital
and share premium account. The Company’s share premium
account with a balance of HK$15,885,000 as at 31st December
2019 is distributable in the form of fully-paid bonus shares.
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Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the vyear
amounted to approximately HK$1,465,000.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's shares
during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares was held by the public as
at 24th March 2020, being the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report, in accordance with Rule 8.08 of
the Listing Rules.

Analysis of Bank Loans and Other

Borrowings

The Group’'s bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st
December 2019, in accordance with the repayment schedule
(without taking into account any repayment on demand clause),
are repayable over the following periods:
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Bank Trust receipt
loans loans Total
BITER FIURBER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Within 1 year 1R 29,800 31,435 61,235
Between 1 and 2 years 122%F 7,200 — 7,200
37,000 31,435 68,435
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Mr. MON Chung Hung, Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying and Mr. LEE
Chung Nai, Jones will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the
Company's Bye-laws at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company. All of them being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent non-
executive director is not more than three years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-
laws.

Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management
The biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 69, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director, Authorised Representative and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. Mr. Mon has over 41 years
of experience in the electric cable and wire industry. He is
responsible for the Group’s overall strategic planning and policy
making. Mr. Mon is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the husband
of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise and the father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki,
Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 60, is an Executive Director,
Authorised Representative and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu
has over 31 years of experience in the electric cable and wire
industry. Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director of the Group and
is responsible for sales of the Group’s products and product
development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 45, is an Executive Director and
a member of the compliance committee of the Board. She
graduated from the Central Queensland University in Australia
with a Bachelor of Communications degree. She joined the
Group in 2004. As the Marketing Executive, she participates in
developing marketing strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon
Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister
of Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 39, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Board. She holds a
bachelor’'s double major degree in economics and management
from the University of Sydney, Australia, Diploma in Company
Direction from Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and “"RSSGB”
certification from Six Sigma Institute. She joined the Group
in 2002. As the Marketing Communications Manager, she
coordinates marketing strategies and is also responsible for the
information system of the Company. She is the daughter of Mr.
Mon Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the younger
sister of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 68, is the Chairman, a Non-
Executive Director, the chairman of the compliance committee
and a member of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board. Ms. Koo is a director of Spector
Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
She is also the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the mother
of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc.,, MBA, M.A., aged 71, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. He joined the Group in
1996. Mr. Lau is a registered professional engineer and holds
a master’s degree in business administration and a bachelor's
degree in electrical engineering from the University of Hong
Kong, and a master degree in history and a master degree of
in Philosophy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lau is a Life President of the Hong Kong Electrical Contractors
Association, and a past President and current Secretary General
of The Federation of Asian and Pacific Electrical Contractors
Associations. He is also the Executive Director of the Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors. He has over
48 years of experience in management and engineering.

Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 71, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Board. Mr. Lee
has over 37 years of experience in international trade in toys,
among which Mr. Lee had also operated a toys factory with
2,000 workers in China for 10 years. Mr. Lee had also operated
a subsidiary company in Hong Kong for a listed company in
Australia. Mr. Lee has his own toy company.

Ms. Chung Kit Ying, aged 45, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and compliance committee of the Board. She joined the Group
in December 2017. Ms. Chung obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration and a degree of Master of Science in
Finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1997 and
2007, respectively. Ms. Chung has worked in an international
firm of certified public accountants and the finance department
of a listed group, and has over 21 years of experience in
accounting and auditing. Ms. Chung is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Seto Sai Cheong Paul, aged 58, is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (“TIHK"). Mr. Seto is also
a Certified Tax Advisor (“CTA") of TIHK. Mr. Seto is responsible
for financial and accounting management, corporate governance
and administration of the Company. He joined the Group in
September 2018. Mr. Seto has over 30 years of experience in
accounting and taxation including senior financial executives
of three main board listed companies in Hong Kong and chief
financial officer of multinational corporation.

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu, aged 48, is the Group's Assistant
Manufacturing Manager and is responsible for sales and
marketing activities. He joined the Group in 1997, holds a
Bachelor degree and Master degree in Mechanical Engineering
and has over 23 years of experience in the electric cable and
wire industry.

Mr. Lai Wing Hong, aged 42, is the Finance Manager and
Company Secretary of the Company. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor (Honours) Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a Master Degree in Business Administration from the Holmes
Institute. Mr. Lai joined the Group on 1st March 2019 and is
responsible for finance functions and the Company Secretary
work. He has over 18 years of experience in auditing and
accounting including being the company secretary and the senior
financial executive of a GEM board listed company in Hong
Kong.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts that are Significant in Relation

to the Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which its holding company
or the Company's subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company and the directors’ connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

in Equity or Debt Securities

At 31st December 2019, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(“Shares”)

ESREASEXBRERNER
R RFRENZEARERS

ERRA R K A M B AR W R SR AR AR
FRAEMERTE BEAEEXBHEE AR
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Total
interests
Number of shares as % of the
Ko A relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
BERGEERA
ERTRA
®E B8 AR ES 3 £ EEE R Hith#E & BER ZESH
MON Chung Hung 284,000 5,258,000 140,822,000 - 146,364,000 73.57%
& IR (note 1) (note 2)
(B 5E1) (Bt 5 2)
KOO Di An, Louise 5,258,000 141,106,000 o= - 146,364,000 73.57%
FE % (note 3)
(P 3E3)
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 = - - 138,000 0.07%

by




Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

in Equity or Debt Securities (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(“Shares”) (Continued)

note 1: Mr. Mon Chung Hung is the husband of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise,
Mr. Mon Chung Hung is thus deemed to be interested in
5,258,000 shares by virtue of his wife's interest therein.

note 2: The 140,822,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector
Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and

as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

note 3: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung. Ms.
Koo is thus deemed to be interested in 141,106,000 Shares

by virtue of her husband’s interest therein.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2019, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or its specified undertakings
or other associated corporation.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the
Share Capital of the Company

Other than the interests of the directors and chief executives of
the Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2019,
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO records interests (as defined in the SFO) in the
Company of the following persons.

FERRREAQDBRAZE &

BREXHIBBEBZARBDEERTIETBRABZ
Bmi R-FE-AF+_A=+—R0 RE
EHLREGRIIFEIIBHRZREMFE ZERL
MATaLsx U FAEREARRR BB (ERR
&R BEGR) -

Total
interests
Number of Shares as % of the
RGEE relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
mEREHERA
ERTRAK
%A BAER Rik#E R FEEER Hip = HRER ZEDL
Spector Holdings Limited 140,822,000 - - - 140,822,000 70.78%
(note 1)
(Pt 1)

note 1. The share capital of the Spector Holdings Limited is owned as
to 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining

0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2019, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial
shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware,
there were no person who, as at 31st December 2019, directly
or indirectly held or was beneficially interested in shares
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Mf#E1: Spector Holdings LimitedZ & AN £ #199.9%
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors has an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Business Review
Business review of the Group is set forth in the Chairman'’s
Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Subsequent Event
Details of subsequent events are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHMERE

To the Shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perennial International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 67 to 155, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended,;
° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for

the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and
o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Basis for Opinion (Continued)
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:
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Key Audit Matter
BEESER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEEBREEFSHE

financial statements.
2HEREVEHRENE26 27 16K%17 °

Valuation for land and buildings and investment
properties
THREFRREVENGE

Refer to notes 2.6, 2.7, 16 and 17 to the consolidated

We assessed the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the valuers by verifying their
qualifications, discussing the scope of their work and
reviewing the terms of their engagements.
BMTETHEMNBEES  BEENRTEHME -
BREZEHER HHEMNBHMMETHNIESER
EHHZBEER -

We carried out procedures to test whether
property-specific standing data supplied to the valuer
by management reflected the underlying property
records held by the Group.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
B B A R ()

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

RRESTSHGE)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEEBEEFSEHE

The Group owns land and buildings in Hong Kong, the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and Vietnam for
office premises and manufacturing plants respectively, and
owns investment properties in Hong Kong for investment
purpose (together, the “Properties”). These are classified
as property, plant and equipment and investment properties
according to their use and, their carrying values are
HK$367.0 million and HK$47.2 million as at 31st December
2019 respectively. For the year ended 31st December
2019, revaluation surplus of HK$0.1 million relating to land
and buildings classified as property, plant and equipment
and revaluation loss of HK$8.1 million relating to the
investment properties are recorded in the consolidated
income statement, revaluation surplus of HK$0.2 million
relating to land and buildings classified as property, plant
and equipment is recorded in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

AEBEERE FEAREKMB((RFEDRBEES T
REFHRBERREREEBREAREEBRARE
MEERERAE (BBIZEDED URBEERESER
ME- - BMERIXBARKREDE RZTE-hF+ZA=
+—H BRHEES 5 A/3670EHET0472BB T - HEZ
Z-NF+A=ZT—BLFRE FHEYELAME KE
REEBENTHREBFELRBRONBEETLREEIER
REMENEGREBEBESIBEATRNEGGERRIE M
BEDERYME BMERIXBN LMW REFEMKB 0.2
BEETANGE2HKDRIIE -

The valuations of these Properties are inherently subjective
due to, among other factors, the individual nature of each
property and its location.

MR (EREE)ZEMENENEE R EMEME - WZ
EMENHEEETFEEENLE -

The valuations of these Properties were carried out by an
independent professional qualified valuers.

ZEMENBEDHBIERXA ERMGEMETT -

We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs used by the valuers
by performing market research on comparable
transactions available for properties located in Hong
Kong and the average cost of construction and useful
life for properties located in the PRC and Vietnam.
Where the assumptions applied by the valuers were
outside our expected range or otherwise unusual,
we discussed the matters with the valuers and
management and obtained additional evidence to
support the explanations received.

HREBEBAYE BMUATSAILREFEERSE
2Z FEHEMMANEIERRR2E8NEE
Mo HRPERBEEYE  RMARTFAREXNERR
A AFHETTISHAE T EEEMMAANES
BRERZ2BNEEY - WMEEMAANBRRELDR
MAEMNSEIEREAMETER KA EEE
MEREEENREBASEYER T B HAEREREIN
BRIERZF -

We concluded that the assumptions used in the
valuations were supportable in light of the available
evidence.

ERENEE  BMRAGEEMANBRRESRRE
N
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Bz BR R ()

Key Audit Matters (Continued) BREETSEH(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRETEE EMNETNATEEBREESEE

Properties in Hong Kong were valued using the direct
comparison approach, with reference to the sales prices
per square foot of comparable properties and adjusted for
key differences in key attributes such as location and size.
Factory buildings in the PRC were valued using both the
direct comparison approach which reference to the sales
prices per square foot of comparable properties and the
depreciated replacement cost approach, with reference to
the cost of construction per square metre in the relevant
locations and apply assumptions for estimated depreciation
over the useful life, to arrive at the final valuation. Factory
buildings in Vietnam were valued using depreciated
replacement cost approach with reference to the cost of
construction per square metre in the relevant locations, with
allowance for accrued depreciation as evidence by observed
condition or obsolescence present.

MR BBNZEMEUEELBRA#ETHE  ER2E0
HEDNESFHRNEEIRFZEAGENTEZEAZE (I
BAGL BT 3 BE R E AR K/ N B AR TR A E T o LR
BN IHREFRAEELBEABRZEALYET THIRY
HEBRRTESEXNNEZETHERZEBLERTF
BIPRAARANBERARAKTAIERFHNMETITE) UG
BHREMEE LR EENIHREFEHE  2ZHEME 2
BYHRBREXNAFNBAITEEERREE T - Wit ARE
BRINMKAKRERMR 2 BT ERE -

The significance of the estimates and judgments involved
warrants specific audit focus in this area.
HRAERBERAIENEARAG+SEE  RUFTE
ERONEZIESEPIRLEE -

Other Information HiE 5

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other B ARG EEZBHHAMEEAEE - HMEE8HE
information. The other information comprises all of the FHRAMWMABELE  ETBESZAMERER
information included in the annual report other than the FMINZEEIRE -

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not AU GAMBERENER LT HE EMb (s
cover the other information and we do not express any form of B BT T ZEHEMELEXRTHEAH
assurance conclusion thereon. EXER

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial #&AHFIEHGEAMBERERNET  RANSE
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information EMEEMES  EHBREF  ZEHMEE
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information REBRGAHEHRRABMPESTBERTMAT
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial BHBEREFEEEAEBREUTFEE K #
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise  EFR L B9 1E R ©

appears to be materially misstated.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
B % BLRD & (48)

Other Information (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the
Audit Committee for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

ff

i 15 B (&)

\

EREMAEATHIE  DREFRBEME
EFEERERRL  HMFEREZEE -
EETE BREEMAMRE -

EERERZEERGAMKR
RAERRNERE

ERFERARERBEBREGMOSEMD
(BRMBHREER)RBB(RTEG) B E
RERBEEMTENREMBRE  XHHE
RRREERAVBRIOEE N FERRRGE
X A AR T 8 B0 B K 88 SR PR BT 75 B 79 B 42
BE-

ERBEREMBRRE  EFRHNE &5
B ELENEE ) YHEEBBRTHE LR
BREFHEMEE UREAKRBLLERS
A BRFEFAES EXEBRAUFLR
2o RPEHEBERNERTR -

EEENMBRES

1% UG 5 A AR S B R R
=

HAMBER  EHEAVBERRERBELNE
FE R ERFE S8R AR T B BUAY B K R AR R L B
BAEEMRE  YHABEEME R X AR
o RMEZRARE-NN\—F(RAIA)E

WIRAM T (ERERB) RERMNWER - Bt
ZHONRBEFNBEMBE) - RO TSR A RE
WAREEMEMALTE FRAREREE -
BERERERKENRE  BTEREZER(E
AEFEETHERS  EX-EANERK
MAF R BRI o $H R a] A BXRF S il
molit - MRABEBRYEMEBIERERKA
EFERAMBRRERERBESAMBRE
Wﬁi%ﬁﬂ%i'%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ@ﬁ
fEEK -



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Bz BR R ()

R E R BT R A M B RRAE
MEE(E

EREB(EAEFFEDETESABRES -
MERTHEEHE RETHEEXEREE - K

7% -

e  HAMFAMEBRUFHEBERMEBEKA
MBRRFEERERRANER - &
ARHMTRAIEFABRBYELRER - X
LREDGEMEENETERE  FHERK
MERMER - ARMFFAREIRER
W FEER ERRA - HEBRA
Sz £ FREHERERKFME
BHE KRR E RSN REEER
HERMEMNE R RER AR

o THREERGTAHEA A AR E B
EMEERF BEMAIYH
MEHNERMEERER -

A RHE
% M

e FEE=MRASHBENREMNRME
HEFEFMEERENSEKE -

e HEERARKBLKZIAERNBEN
Eh#ER  REBEMEDNNWEFSESE @ #
ErREFHERERABREAMNEART
HEMN KM Ess SEEME
RERNELBARE - MREMABS
FHEEARTHEEN BB Y EEZ B
BRETRBEREIEREETBRRSD
MERKE REAHENEETE @ BIR
MEERRIFERBEER  HFNGE®R
RENZEARER LFERBHENE
oo AWM RAFBHSABRALER &
SEETRIFELE -
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
B % BLRD & (48)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Contlnued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
conseqguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Yuk Ting Mabel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th March 2020

2 BBl B AT AR
KB E ()

HERAGMBRROERIRT A &
BAAD BREKE URGEAMBR
REBHTERBRZZMER -

BUBHRRAR

e 3 BSEENERIXBEDNUBES
%Wﬁ BWEERE AR &H

A RAREEEE  AFAK KB
EHMHM - EBEANNT  BM BB
B AR HEML -

BREMEREIN RMEBRZEZESABTE
MEEE - BEZHE EAFFERE 8

%ﬁﬁ&%?@%%ﬁW%?ﬁMEﬁﬁﬁﬂ
B e

EMENEZZESRRERH  HHEMERF
Aﬁ%ﬁi&%ﬁﬁﬁizf Tk I HAth 1
EBANEAENERAES Y ERMB LMD
FrBEBEEMEMEIE - M&E AHERT -
MR &SR -

ftEBSZEZBGEBOEIAD - I E YL
EEUAHAGAVBRENBAR/EE - A

MBEKBRESER - ROEZBMRETHE
MIELEIR - BRIFDEBERIAFARBESE
LEIR  HAEGHEBFIOBERT  MREETRE
HMERMBESTEBARSTHERNEERREB
BELEANRRANEGE  HPIRETEERSE A
B FEE -

HAABIZBABRENETREEBARE
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o
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

M A EE 32
?E‘ SE &= *15):2
For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

Annual Report 2019 £ iR @

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B it FET FET

Revenue W & 5 301,357 355,744

Cost of sales 85 & B AR (245,570) (299,538)

Gross profit X 55,787 56,206

Other income H b iy 2= 6 7,086 7,128

Distribution expenses D (7,305) (9,220)

Administrative expenses THAX (53,976) (54,186)

Other operating (expenses)/income, net H &= (%),

ONE S 7 (12,754) 1,798

Impairment loss on financial assets MBEEREBERERE 19 (754) -

Operating (loss)/profit K (BB, & F 8 (11,916) 1,726

Finance costs 81 %% 8 B 9 (2,468) (1,104)

(Loss)/profit before taxation Br AT (B8 ), A (14,384) 622

Income tax credit/(charge) MEERE (FAX) 10(a) 1,186 (2,382)
Loss for the year attributable to A FIRE R EAS

shareholders of the Company REEEE (13,198) (1,760)
Basic and diluted loss per share (cents) & & & K K& # 8

& 48 (i) 11 (6.6) (0.9)

bl iR A B & R B E R BE M Y & — BF O AE

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

o



@ Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7]

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REeEZTEWER

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Loss for the year rEFEIE (13,198) (1,760)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hih2mE(BX)/ K-
Item that will not be reclassified EEBTeENmoE
subsequently to profit or loss ZEZMIER
Revaluation (deficit)/surplus on land and THREFZEM
buildings, net of tax (BX)/ &B# -
B 75 18 (160) 30,789
ltems that may be reclassified to Hingesmns
profit or loss ZEEMIER
Exchange difference arising from RN B
translation of financial statements of HigsEEXER
subsidiaries (2,203) (13,361)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AFEEHEMEEmOAEX)
for the year I 2= (2,363) 17,428
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the RARRREGARFE
year attributable to shareholders mEEUBKR) M=
of the Company (15,561) 15,668

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o

bt #r & 2 R 58 AR FE A R BE MY B 5 — BF B9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

meEMBEMRRE
As at 31st December 2019
RZFE—NF+ZHA=4+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ioz3 FET FHE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Land use rights T Hb (5 R 14 — 26,696
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 26,496 -
Property, plant and equipment M- HEIKE 16 395,075 402,067
Investment properties "EYE 17 47,200 55,290
Non-current deposits EREE] & 430 1,101
Deferred tax assets RIETIEE E 10(b) 6,296 3,832
475,497 488,986
Current assets MEEE
Inventories 7B 18 110,061 90,934
Trade and bill receivables ERESHEREERE 19 81,163 90,330
Derivative financial instruments MESMIA 20 495 -
Other receivables, deposits and Hiv e zk18 -~ 518
prepayments KIEM A 10,404 11,442
Taxation recoverable Al Uz [ ¢ I8 7M1 1,262
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 21 36,548 49,996
239,382 243,964
Total assets wEE 714,879 732,950
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to shareholders of 7N &) A% B2 JE 15 4 25
the Company
Share capital [N 22 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H At % 6 23 259,618 261,981
Retained earnings RERF 23 283,010 296,208
Total equity B = 562,524 578,085
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities EmBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b) 77 -
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIEAE 10(b) 43,835 44,047
43,912 44,047
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

ARk (&)

As at 31st December 2019
RZFE-NF+ZHA=4+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ioz3 FET FHE T
Current liabilities mENBE

Trade payables FETE SR 24 17,749 17,387

Other payables and accruals H b fE T RIE R E A
i X 24 18,971 29,783
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) 451 -
Taxation payable FE 1 B 1R 2,837 2,114
Bank loans |ITER 25 37,000 36,800
Trust receipt loans ERREER 25 31,435 24,734
108,443 110,818
Total liabilities FEN=R 152,355 154,865
Total equity and liabilities BETRBEEE 714,879 732,950

1bE VIR A MBHRERZEZ

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 165 were 672 2 &
TTHEHKESERHETREESE -

Es
approved by the Board of Directors on 24th March 2020 and F=A
were signed on its behalf.

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
IR & e A
Director Director

EE o

The above consolidated statement of financial position should I #it 47 & Bf 7 AR 3% 3% FE & [R B& MY Bt 5 — 0 B9

A
=]

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER
el o

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 23) earnings equity
Hib & B

BAE (W23 RERF S
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TRERT TER

As at 1st January 2019 R-ZE—-—NF—H—H 19,896 261,981 296,208 578,085
Comprehensive loss 2MEIBX
Loss for the year KEFEEIBE - - (13,198) (13,198)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hiz2m(EXR) kF

income
Revaluation surplus on land T REFCEGHRRK

and buildings - 181 - 181
Deferred tax charged to MR EGREEZEERIE

revaluation reserve - (341) - (341)
Exchange difference arising OpEE NI B

from translation of financial 2R ZIERER

statements of subsidiaries - (2,203) - (2,203)
Total comprehensive loss REFHEHEB KR

for the year - (2,363) (13,198) (15,561)
At 31st December 2019 RZE—NF

+=-A=+—8H 19,896 259,618 283,010 562,524
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
meRm#gEHk(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 23) earnings equity
HAit B

A (BfiE23) REBEF Mg m
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TAET TAET FTAT TAT

As at 1st January 2018 R-ZE—-NF—H—H 19,896 244,553 297,968 562,417
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year KEFEEIB - - (1,760) (1,760)
Other comprehensive income/ Hihz2mkz (FiE)

(loss)
Revaluation surplus on land T REFCEGHRRK

and buildings - 37,304 - 37,304
Deferred tax charged to MR EGREEELERIE

revaluation reserve - (6,515) - (6,515)
Exchange difference arising OpEE NI B

from translation of financial ZABMZIERER

statements of subsidiaries - (13,361) - (13,361)

Total comprehensive income/ AFEE2EWZE
(loss) for the year (E548) - 17,428 (1,760) 15,668
At 31st December 2018 RZZE—NF
+—A=+—H 19,896 261,981 296,208 578,085

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should I it 47 & #E 25 %5 B & /& 3 [ B O Bt 5% — 4 62

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2 A L =
ng,i\ = EE: ﬁ DL B2 %
For the year ended 31st December 2019
HE-F—NFF+=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FET FE T
Cash flows from operating EETENRERE
activities
Net cash (used in)/generated from BE(FTA) EAm
operations FIRE 27(a) (3,220) 2,034
Hong Kong profits tax refunded, net EEEF B FIEH T 183 1,278
Overseas tax paid, net AR $7|\ﬂ BHFRE (1,446) (1,434)
Interest paid T E (2,468) (1,523)
Net cash (used in)/generated from SEEE (A EAE
operating activities " FIR© (6,951) 355
Cash flows from investing RETHNEERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  BEMKEB
equipment (14,114) (42,580)
Decrease in deposits paid for BOREYE BEK
additions of property, plant and Xz ENE2
equipment 671 4
Interest received WL F B 98 62
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEWE - MEN
and equipment HBETE K 27(b) 524 101
Net cash used in investing activites KEEEMANFE S (12,821) (42,413)
Cash flows from financing METHNRERE
activities
Additions of bank loans FIBRITE R 27(d 35,000 40,000
Repayments of bank loans BEFRITER 27(d (34,800) (3,200)
Net addition/(repayment) of trust SFEIE S (ER) B
receipt loans Wik B 27(d) 6,701 (12,887)
Payments for principal portion of TNHEHEBELRR IS
the lease liability 27(d) (364) -
Net cash generated from financing BREFHELAMNFRE
activities 6,537 23,913
Net decrease in cash and ReRBEESEEBYZ
cash equivalents FR D (13,235) (18,145)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZR& XK
at 1st January REeZEEY 49,996 68,621
Exchange difference on cash and RekBReEBY2
cash equivalents MEHEE (213) (480)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=ZRA=+—-8z2
at 31st December ReRkBESEEY 21 36,548 49,996

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read il 43 & I8 & % & & FE & [A BB M Mt 5+ — 6 B
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o



@ Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B AR M A

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

General Information

Perennial International Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of electric cable and wire
products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of land
and buildings and investment properties and certain
financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

—REH

EREEERARN (AR RRELR
AR ARARKF AR (GBI ALE])
FTERENEREEERRERES -

AR RBREFMAKAE—BBERA
Al o HFEM 9 E & & i 4k A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °

BRRINERI - W FHEAMBMRIAE

T2 -
FTESHHRRRBE

RAELEEAVBEREARABZIEES
AABERERTX - BAGRBI  HFBR
EMERNMEFENERER -

21 REEE
AEBEGAVBERRDZBELS
A AR BEMH A EREEYB
BEEN(EFBHHREEA] R
FABCRAMEDI) F622F 69 % BE AR
TR  ZEGAMBRREESR
AR E RS WHLE R B ERE
THREFREEMENRE TR
BEEMBBERBTEIRER
fEHERT -

RENMEEEVBRELENNES
MERAFTEEMRE THARS G
A TMEREREERAAEES
AARRBRPELHE - SRS E
MR EEMRENRE 208
REEEWHRRBERBRNMG
HHHE - M S E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. T ESHBEBE(H)
Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)

New and amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group

The following new standard and amendments to
standards and interpretation have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1st January 2019:

HKFRS 16
BB % W E R L1695

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
ZE(BRMERERBEES) -2 BF20%R

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BB W EEREIR (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 19
BB EAFE195 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 28
BB G ERFE285% (B R &)
Annual Improvements Project

FEM#EIER

Of these, only HKFRS 16 is relevant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements. The Group had to
change its accounting policy as a result of adopting
this new standard. This note below explains the
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases on the
Group’s financial statements and discloses the new
accounting policies that have been applied from 1st
January 2019 as below.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 on 1st January
2019 without restating comparatives for the
2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transitional provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications arising from the new leasing rules
are therefore recognised in the opening balances on
1st January 2019.

AEERMOFTREETEAR
B2e
AEBER_T-hhF-—A—B%
ZREABOMBEREEREA T
Fal A - ERMEFT AR BE:

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

P15 % B 32 B A B RE 1

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
REEFFUELREHE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

FHEIERT - MR REHE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

REERAIRAGERCENREER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. FEETHERBEE)
i BLE 2 ()

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21

New and amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group (Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group did not
recognise any right-of-use asset or lease liability as
at 1st January 2019 due to application of simplified
accounting for low value leases and those leases
with a term of 12 months or less, except that land
use rights of HK$26,696,000 were reclassified as
right-of-use assets.

On 11th February 2019, the Group entered into a
rental contract and recognised lease liabilities. The
liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate of 3.7%.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the
following types of assets:

AEBMRMANFITIRCETEAR
RE(E)
HRRMEBEAELRZSFH A2
BAxKATHHERABE %
MR RME B 5 HREERF165%
BF © 226,696,000/ 7T #y + #h (F B
EWETHO>BAFEREEEN X
EEPAR-_E—NE—H—BE
RIEFEAEEEXNHERE -

RZE—NF-_A+—H KEEFT
VY- HEEAYNITRAREARE -
ZEaBEDENgHEENRAOR
BitE B WIRASEIES ERF X
3.7%8E3E

ERRACHEEER N NEERLY
BE:

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

—®-hE —E-NE

+=A=+—8 —A—A

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FE T

Land use rights T Hb {5 FE 25,938 26,696
Property LS 558 —
Total right-of-use assets FREEERLSE 26,496 26,696

(i)  Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

° the use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

° reliance on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous;

° the accounting for operating leases with
a remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1st January 2019 as short-
term leases or low value leases;

(i) ERFRATITEEELE
RERRME BB HREER
FI65RE - REBEFERUAT
QR R RAITRE A

e HAAAEMAUFHED
HEMRAAERE—UR

e ;

e KEZAMBANEERSD
EEMFG:

o HR_E—NF—H—H
T ex & B 121E A
MNEEHENSFTRIE
BEBHBEEREKEEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

HE-F-AF+=A=+—AULFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. T ESHBEBE(HE)

fm LA ()
AEERMOFTREETEAR
2EE

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21
New and amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group (Continued)
(i)  Practical expedients applied (Continued)
° the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application; and

o the use of hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the
Group relied on its assessment made when
applying HKAS 17 Leases and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease.

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities

(i)

(i)
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HK$000
TR

Operating lease commitments disclosed WRZ-ZZ—N\F+=-HF=+—H
as at 31st December 2018 R 2R AE 285
Less: short-term leases not recognised B AERSBENEH

as a liability HE (188)
Less: low-value leases not recognised as & : AR AAGBHEEE
a liability HE (97)
Lease liability recognised as at 1st RZE-NF—HA—BERL
January 2019 ME&E =

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for
The Group leases a warehouse and has land
use rights under long-term lease agreements.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain wide range of different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants, but leased assets
except land use rights may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(iii) g%@ﬂ?ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁfﬁ

AEEHE-BAEERERY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR E(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. FEEHERBEGE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
New and amended standards and interpretation AEBMERMANFITIRLCETEAR
adopted by the Group (Continued) RE(E)
(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how (iii) XEFBHHEZTBHRASH TS
these are accounted for (Continued) E (&)

Until the 2018 financial year, leases of
property, plant and equipment were classified
as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

From 1st January 2019, leases (including land
use rights) are recognised as right-of-use
assets and are presented as a separate line
item in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the corresponding liabilities are
recognised at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that are based

on an index or a rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option
if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising that option.

BEE_T-)\EUREE Y
X BERRBHENELSK
L2HE - RELEHEFELW
MR(HBEE LA AESHE
2R N EEMANERZE
SRl

BE-Z—NF—A—A8& #
E(pELIEREREEE
EffHAEEERZBERA
HREEE  WEEATBR
MERANEZINAERIELE LER
HEaE SEHENFHE
raERMEERZMENE -
HHERREERRNAEZRN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
New and amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be determined, the Group's incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
Group would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Lessor accounting

The Group does not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor under operating leases as a result of
adoption of HKFRS 16.
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2. FEEHBERBEGE)

FEMBEHREENEI0RREL
gt AR FE 285 (B AT &)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wBREE(E)
New and amended standards not yet adopted R ER AR R RIS RT £ A
Certain new and amended standards have been ETEEMGEMARZE—NF—
issued but are not effective for the financial year A—BRBRNTBRFEEBFE
beginning on 1st January 2019 and have not been RASIERTERN RERFERM -
early adopted.
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTFI Bk 2 %R
MEFHBEEN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business 1 January 2020
BEEVBWMELEBEIR(EITR) EBHNER —E_EHFE—-—HA—AH
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of material 1 January 2020
BEGHEAEZIRLBEGHE EANER —E2-FTF—H—H
Al & 85% (18 5T A)
Conceptual Framework for Financial Revised Conceptual Framework for 1 January 2020
Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting —E-FF—H—H
—E-)N\EHBREMRSAESR KASET I B S S e 2R
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting 1 January 2020
and HKFRS 9 HihgstEe —E-_FH—H—H
BB SFEREI95 - BBV KR
ERANETREBEBHBRE
AR Z95% (B 7] AN)
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
BB WELERE175R wbga 4 —2-_—-%—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint T

Venture
WEEHREBE QR AEGETE LM
MEETRENTE



Annual Report 2019 £ iR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

21

2.2

2.3

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group will adopt the new and amended
standards when they become effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact of adopting the above new and
amended standards, none of which is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated,
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred assets. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
EFCE-NFLT A= —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are

chief operating decision-maker.

in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

reported

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and the Group’'s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rate are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income
statement on a net basis within other operating
income/(expenses), net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2. FEEHBERBEGE)

2.5

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

25 B ER)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (iii) £E@AQF
The results and financial position of foreign RINEBH(ERRERBERE
operations (none of which has the currency LHEZ\%/@{E%E’] 5B R B B

SRR WM
2 AR BRSBTS

of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the FERHBBEWMER:

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement (i) BEUBRARZEE
of financial position presented are &E\{E B Z B AR R
translated at the closing rate at the date REEHNEXRFTER
of that statement of financial position; ERER:

(i)  income and expenses for each (i) #FEEZEZREZEKZ
income statement and statement of KA R HE®T
comprehensive income are translated at HEXTHEAERER
an average exchange rate (unless this is (BRIFWFHEWLIEZE

(iii)

not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effects of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses and translated of
the date of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.6 Investment property
Investment properties are land and/or buildings that
are held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation which include property interest held
under operating lease carried at fair value. Land held
under operating lease is accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

\%Eﬁﬂi@ﬁﬁ%f‘%ﬁ
TEZARBHE Tt
BT YA K B sz i

?&%EE@E@%) PR

(i) FAEEXEZ=ZHERIRN
H At 2 WA -

REEAKRER  FREREI
TRNREFARMELNE

RER AREME2EREA
R -

26 REWHE
WA EEBFAENBDRAS KA
R REERERRN LR,
NiETF  AERECLHERAN

Ta’&ﬁfﬁ)\%ﬁ’]%%ﬁéﬁ{l 2m e
REMEMERTRN  UKLEH

EFANTIHARIMEREDE -

S U DL R
RS WA E -

BEEEZ



@ Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.6 Investment property (Continued)

2.7

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
independent valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “other operating
(expenses)/income, net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Land and Buildings
Land mainly represents the land in Hong
Kong under finance lease. Buildings comprise
factories and offices. Land and buildings
are shown at fair value, based on annual
valuations by external independent valuers,
less subsequent depreciation and impairment.
Any accumulated depreciation and impairment
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset.

2. FEEHBERBEGE)

2.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property,

plant and equipment

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Land and Buildings (Continued)

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of land under finance lease and
buildings are credited to land and buildings
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement, in
which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same
asset are charged against land and building
revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other
decreases are expensed in the consolidated
income statement.

Other property, plant and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment,
comprising leasehold improvements, plant
and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office
equipment, motor vehicles and pleasure boats
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost
which comprises construction costs, purchase
costs and other related expenses incurred in
connection with the construction of buildings,
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery
for own use, less provision for impairment
losses, if any. On completion, construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property,

plant and equipment

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Depreciation on land under finance lease
and buildings is calculated to write off their
valuation less accumulated impairment losses
on a straight-line basis over the unexpired
period of the leases or their estimated useful
lives, whichever is shorter. The principal annual
rates used range from 1.5% to 4%.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a reducing balance
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

15%-20%
15%-20%
15%-20%
15%-20%
15%-20%
10%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Pleasure boats

No depreciation is provided for construction-in-
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
(iv) Others (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the

end of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

(v) Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the consolidated
income statement and are recognised within
‘other operating (expenses)/income, net'.
Where revalued assets are sold, the amounts
included in land and building revaluation
reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Leases

As explained in note 2.1 above the Company has
changed its accounting policy for leases where the
Company is the lessee. The new policy and the
impact of the change is described in note 2.1.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") or
through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories in which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement and presented in
other operating (expenses)/income, net
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the income
statement.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on
a debt instrument that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment

The Group has four types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

° Bill receivables
° Cash at bank
° Trade receivables

° Other financial assets at amortised cost

Bill receivables and cash at bank

As at 31st December 2019, most of the bank
deposits are deposited with reputable banks in
the PRC, Vietham and Hong Kong. Most of the
bill receivables are issued from state-owned
banks in the PRC. The credit quality of cash
at bank and bill receivables has been assessed
by reference to external credit ratings or to
historical information about the counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties
do not have defaults in the past. Therefore,
expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision
was made as at 31st December 2019.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
12 months before 31st December 2019
respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. T ESHBEBTE(HE)
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 I EE (&)
(iv) Impairment (Continued) (iv) R{E (&)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The existing customers has no historical default
record in prior years. For the year ended
31st December 2019, the Group has applied
an expected credit loss rate at 3.65% for a
particular customer and resulted in provision for
impairment loss of HK$754,000. For details,
please refer to note 19. As at 31st December
2018, the directors of the Group were of the
opinion that no provision for loss allowance
was necessary.

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to
make contractual payments for a period greater
than a year past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost are
considered to be low credit risk primarily
because historically they had no history of
default and the debtors had a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. Therefore, as at 31st December
2019 and 2018, the directors of the Group
were of the opinion that no provision for loss
allowance was necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. T ESHBEBE(HE)
Policies (Continued)
2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

2NN EEESMTHE

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Assets
and liabilities are classified as current if expected
to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the derivatives are presented in the profit or loss
within “other operating (expenses)/income, net” in
the period in which they arise.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual
items on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived
at as follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(i)~ Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

(i) Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced
price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measure them subsequently at amortised
cost using effective interest method. See note 19 for
further information about the Group's accounting for
trade receivables and note 2.10 (iv) for a description
of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. The fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the financial period
in which they are incurred.

2.19 Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability and an expense when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plan are expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates
contribution schemes.

several defined

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For Hong Kong employees, the Group
contributes to Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") scheme in accordance with Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions to the MPF scheme
by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ remuneration
received. The Group's contributions to MPF
scheme are expensed as incurred. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

For employees in Mainland China and
Vietnam, the Group contributes to a defined
contribution retirement scheme managed by
the local municipal government in Mainland
China and Vietnam. The Group’s contributions
to the retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred while the local municipal government
in Mainland China and Vietnam undertakes to
assume that the retirement benefit obligations
of the qualified employees in Mainland China
and Vietnam.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.20Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’'s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will
be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20Current and deferred

income tax

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intend
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

2.21Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events,

it is probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the obligation present at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

2. FEEHBERBEGE)

2.20 E i & I E B H (&)

(b) iﬁﬁﬁlﬁ(ﬁ)
fif A2 WIM%EE%E%
m%ﬁ&&§§iﬁ7
AR R W$%¢%
SNEBREREEEBRE
RME R ZEBERELT AR
BEREE -

i 5 75 £ 7] KA 58 ) $ 17 B9
BANSANMREEERBER
B 0 N A A A IR AR AR ER R —
WIS HAE AR - AR HOE AR
BEERAEERLE - WERA
AR R BT R BE
ERFEEESFERNREE
REERFERER - B
MEEERBEABIERS -

BN EERERGAER
RIER - EEFPRREMEE
W?iﬁ%%%éﬁ%mﬁﬁ
|§//T\? N o

2.21

L
™
=

- EE my = 4t
23S
=)
it

I8 5F 5 o 55
\\\\

<O

b

i

mwﬁ%
B RENE
[
[

2k @
-

- K

i
o 31
o Ji
[

1 | Y 5 D B
3 2 O
& Ym
S
=
A

T T I B A
o o & I mHF

B8 2.0l g, (1

A ZEBELE
hEEIRR
18 75§ 58 5l 2
18 7% %8 5l P
7 H) B R R
EREE -

T

HBEZEHEEH
ﬂﬁ?&'ﬁ”ﬂ$ R &
B o BMEER—
£ {7 — & 75 8 48
Al RE EERIE - 2R

Rt

S bR &
43%4%

EE (@ K

BEREIEEHNR
AENRAEENX
MEEJE %%%

ﬁiﬁ
BiE B ] muﬁﬁ'ﬁi'ﬁlﬂ £
BRXE -

k 5 o 0 =B
Y > mf FRRF AT

=
2o 2 I

o R B
3 B¢ M 22 OF Yy

T
o 2
I K
ﬁ
Hok
f
=1
ﬁ
W
%3%%&%

7

@



@ Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.22Revenue recoghnition

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the
products has transferred to the customers at
a point in time, being when the products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has
full discretion over the channel and price to
sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer's
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer,
and either the customer has accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. As receivable
is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time
is required before the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Operating lease rental income
Operating lease rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

FESTHEBE(E)
2.23 B ¥ 1@ B

Summary of Significant Accounting 2.

Policies (Continued)
2.23Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB"), Vietnamese
dong (“VND") and United States Dollar
("US$"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. In addition, the conversion
of RMB and VND are subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by Mainland China monetary
authority and Vietnam government respectively.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities, the Group
enters into foreign exchange forward contracts
with external financial institutions to partially
hedge against such foreign exchange risk.
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approximately HK$344,000 lower/higher (2018:
approximately HK$60,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of RMB denominated receivables
and payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR E(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

HE—-F

3. Financial

—NFF A=+ —HILFE

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Should VND strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2018: 5%) during the year ended 31st December
2019 against the HK$, with all other variables held
constant, the impact of the loss after taxation
for the year would have been approximately
HK$126,000 (2018: approximately HK$66,000
lower/higher), higher/lower mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
VND denominated receivables and payables.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in USD but the foreign exchange risk
is considered not significant as HK$ exchange rate
is pegged to USD.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than RMB, VND and USD are insignificant to the
Group.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials such as copper rods
and chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which can
mitigate the price risk. The Group has not used any
derivative instruments to hedge such economic
exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. Details of the Group’s borrowings have been
disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not used any hedging arrangement
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group's profit after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available
at the reporting date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with
other variables held constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the loss after taxation of a 100 basis-
point decrease/increase in interest rate would
be a decrease/increase of HK$663,000
and HK$514,000 for the years ended 31st
December 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables.

Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with acceptable
rating quality is accepted.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of
the customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by
the Group. The compliance with credit limits by
customers is regularly monitored by the Group.

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed
by external agents.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$208,311,000 (2018:
HK$234,851,000), representing 69% (2018:
66%) of total revenue for the year. The total
accounts receivable balance of these top 5
customers as at 31st December 2019 was
HK$64,577,000 (2018: HK$67,542,000).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has adopted the expected credit
loss model to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables. Details of the accounting policy
for impairment of trade receivables has been
disclosed in note 2.10(iv).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

3. Financial

Risk Management

(Continued)

(v)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies

maintaining sufficient cash and making
available an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities with staggered maturities to
reduce refinancing risk in any year and to
fund working capital, debt servicing, dividend
payments, new investments and close out
market positions if required. The Group
maintains significant flexibility to respond to
opportunities and events by ensuring that
committed credit lines are available. As at 31st
December 2019, the Group had available trade
and loan finance facilities of HK$185,040,000
of which HK$68,435,000 was utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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3. Financial

(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, maintain a strong credit
rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the
business and to enhance shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. The Group’s capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years ended 31st December 2019 and
2018.

Except for the compliance of certain financial
covenants for maintaining the Group's banking
facilities and borrowings and loans, the Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. The Group complied with the financial
covenants attached to borrowings and loans as at
31st December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing total
borrowings to total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2019 and 2018
were as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
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Risk Management

(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bill receivables, other receivables and
deposits, derivative financial instruments, trade
payables, other payables and accruals and short-term
borrowings approximate to their fair values due to
their short-term maturities. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments, unless the
discounting effect is insignificant.

See notes 16 and 17 for disclosures of the property,
plant and equipment and investment properties and
note 20 for disclosure of the derivative financial
instruments that are measured at fair value and
classified by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy at 31st December 2019 and
2018:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level
2).

3. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4. BAR SR HE

MEMHG S WTETE LRBBE
RBMEMRZETIE BREEEH
BRATHEHRKREHEGENER -

REBEREELHEEMRE - IEH
it (WEER) RIOGEEFR
BRAR - RAKESERTEMBRFE
MEENABEMNEREEFELRERRBENR
HEMRRI /AT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

4. Critical

Accounting Estimates and

Judgements (Continued)

41

4.2

4.3

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimated fair value of investment
properties and land and buildings

The fair values of investment properties and land
and buildings are determined at the end of each
reporting period by independent professional valuers.
The fair value of investment properties is determined
on an open market value basis by reference to
comparable market transactions. The fair values of
land and buildings are determined on an open market
value basis or depreciated replacement cost basis.
These methodologies are based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions as to income
and expenses of the property and future economic
conditions.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rate. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

4. BAR SR A E (F)

41

4.2

4.3

Bi 18

AEETEESERARERAR
BIE - CEESEVBERBER &
EEREAHE TENBREDE
ENENABERE - EIEEXH B
Bh HFERHRAENREET
ETHEERN - ARERBMEFEDS
ARSI K - BLIRE B IR AR
BfE - EREOBMRERERKI
ReBTRE AEZRETEE
TE F ] 89 BT 15 700 MUE JE 7R R B4 -

gﬁﬁ%% I REFH
EME -THWEREFHRIAER
BEREAERABABLIEXMLE
BIRTE - REMENRIAEBEZER
HEMIER I RFEMISER - £
WREBFHRAALEBERARTSER
FTERBEERANTERE - A £
TETIRBRRKGEROMEF N —FK
51 B8 70 W0 5 RO YA 32 i R o 2R A
EERMIEHRR ©

5D BF
\L\nll’
c

T

BEZRWREZRERE
AEEREBEREDRERMERE
BENBER  LEHREMEER
EOREFELEE - AREEHZE
SR hkEREFENE ARE
B REASEBERLE NER
& HR B IRTT O Ko B BE M5 5
A B -
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and 4. B® € 5H{h 5% ¥ (&)

Judgements (Continued)

4.4 Provision for inventories
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment
of the net realisable value of its inventory, which is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors
such as the age of the inventory items and the
assessment of the results of the subsequent sales
performance of the items. Management reassess the
provision at the end of the reporting period.

4.5 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

44 FERE
R 171 2 0] 9 35 % [E R A B I
BEAHEUBEEB PG EE
MEBHERSBERBEESH - B
e SEEEEEIEE -
MFEETEE Y BEEe R IEB % &5
EEE L TEERBSHK
4 ST (B o

4.5 iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ
SEEEEEEME  BERR
ZEETAEAFERRAEITER
o WEADEREAABRUME
NREZME - BB &R ﬁZA%
AERFRZEL &SR  AIERK
MEHFMELBERAEY - EEE
#5103 BB ST - e AJ R A A K
R Z BTG a2 F H 0 S I EE Sl
EE%E%&%Z@%%%%%%
= o

7
H
ZN
%

=

i 5 & 2 & &
AEBIBMENERERTHERER
ERER - FRERZMBSMT

2019 2018

=F-NF —TN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FH& T

Sale of goods — at a point in time 45 — 7£ X & B &5 25 301,357 355,744

The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision
maker) has reviewed the Group’s internal reporting and
determines that there are five reportable segments, based
on location of customers under the electric cable and wire
products business, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,
America, Europe and Other countries. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks
and returns that are different from others.

THEH (BEFREERRE)EHEAEE
N EREEEERLERERED
T*ETF%JEFﬁEiﬂfﬁﬂfl"* CBEE
CRERRE - EMN - BUNREMER -
#J}E‘BIHFM&@#&E}DJUEAEW,QETB
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁf’aﬂ”ﬁﬁ°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR E(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information

5. Wam k7 ABE R (&)

(Continued)
The segment information for the reportable segments for —E-NFRZZE-N\FRED I D I
2019 and 2018 are as follows: BRT
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation
W =
(5h 3088 &) DEEE BIBEE BEAREX e
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
—E-hEF ZE-hF ZE-hF ZE-hF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FTET TRERT TRERT
Hong Kong BB 85,432 (7,668) 176,593 1,514 6,195
Mainland China B K B 41,508 (2,555) 309,245 609 12,431
America =M 171,754 686 93,495 - -
Europe BN 445 (41) 118 - -
Other countries H i B R 2,218 (158) 81,932 13,326 2,377
Reportable segment &2 A 301,357 (9,736) 661,383 15,449 21,003
Unallocated costs KHOEER (2,180)
Operating loss W EE (11,916)
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure  Depreciation ~ Amortisation
I &
(ONEBIHE) DEEE HBOBEE B X e 3
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
—E2-NFE ZE-N\F ZZE-N\E —E-N\F —ZE-N\F —FT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong a5 113,641 3,503 205,796 147 5,255 -
Mainland China B K RE 50,246 1,390 314,697 3,579 10,176 585
America EM 182,475 (1,397) 89,071 - - -
Europe B 710 (20) 159 - - -
Other countries Hth B R 8,672 (234) 64,105 42,429 - 130
Reportable segment ¥} & 7 &0 355,744 3,242 673,828 46,155 15,431 715
Unallocated costs RAHOBLEMA (1,516)
Operating profit 4 5 F 1,726
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's
total assets.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

W & 7 &8 & # ()

MoMEERAEEBEENYE -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHEIT

Total segment assets woHEE 661,383 673,828
Investment properties "wEME 47,200 55,290
Deferred tax assets RERIRE E 6,296 3,832
Total assets wEE 714,879 732,950

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.

Revenue of approximately HK$153,484,000 (2018:
HK$158,635,000) are derived from two (2018: two) major
customers contributing 10% or more of the total revenue.
These revenues are attributable to the America segment
(2018: America segment).

ADEBRABARHE -

I 25 49 HK$153,484,000/% T (= & —/\
£ 158,635,000 L) @ KEM & (=
— )\ : W%)I%Eﬁ(fa,ﬂ@uﬁﬁm%i
AE)e ZEWRFZRBEEMD I (=Z
FEZEMNDEL) -

2019 2018
—E-RE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHE T

Customer A 2EA 80,484 88,106
Customer B =FB 73,000 70,529

153,484

158,635
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

6. Other Income 6. Hiursm
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHEIT
Other Income H i 2

Scrap sales 5 R 8 B 3,169 4,286
Interest income BN N 98 62

Rental income from investment REKEYE ZHS KA
properties 892 1,291
Government subsidy B %8 b 423 360

Compensation and storage EPHEREFEA

income from customers 9290 765
Other income from customers EMmEFPRA 1,514 364
7,086 7128

7. Other Operating (Expenses)/Income, 7. H&E&(BEIX) WAFE

Net
2019 2018
—E—AF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Other operating (expenses)/income, EH b &% (B ), W A F 5
net
Revaluation surplus of buildings BFEGHARH 138 1,738
(Loss)/gain on revaluation of HEWMEGBEGRX) S
investment properties Fr 1% (8,090) 3,140
Charitable donations EEBE (1,465) (690)
Net loss on derivatives financial TESRIAEFEEX
instruments (1,083) -
Net exchange losses SN F 18 2K (996) (1,092)
Loss on disposal/write-off of HeEMEE - BER
property, plant and equipment HREEE (57) (29)
Other expenses EmAX (1,201) (1,269)
(12,754) 1,798
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

emoluments) (note 12)

8. Operating (Loss)/Profit 8. K& (FE) HF
Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging/(crediting) K& (BB, BFEMR, GEA) THlE
the following: 3 :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Amortisation and depreciation: B RITE
Amortisation of land use rights o 5 A R 8 - 715
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets 1,030 -
Depreciation of property, M- - BMELZBITE
plant and equipment 19,973 15,431
Auditor’s remuneration % BRD BN &
- Audit services - ®BFIEE 1,648 1,525
- Non-audit services - JEFEFTIEE 1,076 764
Cost of inventories FEKA 148,684 206,704
Net exchange losses AN TEE S5 18 2K 996 1,092
Operating lease rentals in respect THREBFIREHEHERS
of land and buildings 77 438
Operating lease rentals in respect MAREoREHER S
of office equipment 36 339
Direct expenses for investment REMERGZEEKE
properties 3 21 129
(Reversal of provision)/provision for 18 A7 & (¥R zH1R) #E
slow-moving inventories (705) 298
Staff costs (including directors’ BEINA(BIEESEHE)

(Bt 5E12) 93,002 98,252
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

9. Finance Costs 9. BIKEHR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Finance expenses on lease liabilites FE&BE 2 W KEHX 21 -
Interest expenses on bank borrowings fRITER 2 F ERAX 2,793 1,523

Less: finance costs capitalised B EEREEN
on qualifying assets BRI T5 B B (346) (419)
Net finance cost B 7% 8 %58 2,468 1,104

10.

Note:

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing
costs to be capitalised in construction-in-progress is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s borrowing during
the year of 3.68% (2018: 3.15%).

Taxation

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax provided at the two-tiered rate
of 8.25% for the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits for one of the Group's Hong Kong
subsidiaries for the year and 16.5% on the remaining
estimated assessable profits for the year (2018:
8.25% for the first HK$2 million and 16.5% for the
remaining).

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

The subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam
during the year is subject to corporate income
tax at a rate of 20%. In accordance with the
applicable tax regulations, the subsidiary is subject
to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive
years, commencing from the first year of making
revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first
four years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit
is generated for the first time or (ii) the fourth year
of commencing operations; and a 50% reduction in
corporate income tax for the next nine years. The
Vietnam subsidiary of the Group was exempted
from corporate income tax for the first year for the
year ended 31st December 2019 (2018: no taxable
profit).

10.

M L

ErERIRMERNERREASEMBZ
EARCEREBFRNETEMEGERERZ NEFHF
R A368% (ZF—/\F:3.15%) °

Bi1E

(a) AEE-—BEBMBRARNEER
SRR & T E2,000,000% T K
FER RO G ERE AR D BIR
8.25% M. 16.5% M) N 24 | T R AT 12 &
BRIEH (ZF—/\F 52,000,000
75 TC LA8.25% M Tl #4 LA16.5%) ©

BN M 2 BIRE R IEFE A EHE
AR T N 4% AN SR B AR P A B A
EMRITERREAH -

FARBREKZRELNHER
BIAB20% M M E MM X MAE
B RIBERRIBER  ZMBEL
AEEANEEFREEETIFR
BAR TR E10% &M -t s - BOE
EEMEFRIB/ABLROEN
FREEERE)EFTENFAR
ZHBEARAEEZBMPHMDER
gt YRERALFAZFAHL®%
CEMGHREL BE_FT-NLF
TZA=Z1+—HLEEFE AREN®
EMERARF - FEBREEMRS
M—E-N\F:ERERRBEHN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

(Continued) (a)
The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to the

For the year ended 31st December 2019

BE-—FT—NF+ZA=1—HIFE

10. % 1E (38)

(%)

GIA) /Ml GeaEER 2B E

consolidated income statement represents: =t
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH 163 265
Overseas taxation 8 IR T8 1,670 3,084
Over-provision in prior year FRIHBERE (2) (317)
Deferred tax relating to the TRHEERNEERBERZ
origination and reversal of iR FE 18 (P 3E10(b))
temporary differences
(note 10(b)) (3,017) (650)
(1,186) 2,382

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before
taxation differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong
as follows:

AEEABBRLA(EER), 8z
I8 R R R A & B A S M R M T
BZEmMBIERENT:

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FET

(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (BB, & T (14,384) 622
Calculated at a taxation rate of IZFE16.5% (ZF—/)\F :

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 16.5%) st & 2 1A (2,373) 103
Effect of different taxation rates [R & R 2 &2 1,307 1,414
Income not subject to taxation 7B Z U A (3,318) (2,619)
Expenses not deductible for TR 2 2 H

taxation purposes 3,156 3,783
Over-provision in prior year FRIHBERE (2) (317)
Utilisation of previously 1% A3 55 Al K B 7R

unrecognised tax losses T e 18 (38) (30)
Tax losses for which no deferred R#E R IE LT 1B 2

tax assets were recognised % EE 82 48
Taxation (credit)/charge B GEA), Mk (1,186) 2,382
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

10. Taxation (Continued) 10. B 1E (&)
(b) The movement on the net deferred tax liabilities (b) ELCHBBEGBRBFENEHNT
account is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —T— N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
At 1st January n—HA—H 40,215 34,350
Deferred tax credited to A EARERR ZELERIA
the consolidated income (Kt 5E10(a))
statement (note 10(a)) (3,017) (650)
Deferred tax charged to MR EGHRFEZ
revaluation reserve iR JE 7 IR 341 6,515
At 31st December R+ZA=+—H 37,539 40,215
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities EREZEREER—BEEERANK
and assets, without taking into consideration HHE BELEMEBABEREESZD
the offsetting of balances within the same tax m
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE
Tax depreciation Revaluation surplus Provisions and others Total
BENE MR BEREM ME
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-hE ZF-N\F Z¥-hE —ZT-)\f Z2-hEF —ZT-)\F ZB-hnEFE "—T)\F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FEx FET T FHT FEx FET FEx FET

At 1st January w—A—A 1,261 1,662 48,442 41,927 1,061 1,058 50,764 44,547
(Credited)/charged to BiFABREERP

the consolidated (Gt A) /M

income statement (71) (301) 34 - (1,061) 3 (1,098) (298)
Deferred tax charged to  HBRE & 2

revaluation reserve EIER R - - 34 6,515 - - 341 6,515
At 31st December wn+=-A=+—8 1,190 1,261 48,817 48,442 - 1,061 50,007 50,764
Set-off of deferred tax 1R & 4K &4 16 SUIK 84

liabilities pursuant to EEHEERE

set-off provision (6,172) (6,717)

43,835 44,047




10. Taxation (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
Deferred tax assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

10. FiIE ()

(b) (&)
EEHEEE
Tax depreciation Provisions and others Tax losses Total
BT E BERAML BBEE B
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Z%-nF -F-N\F SE-AE “F-\F CE-A%F -T-\F -¥-nf -FNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THR TH7 TR TR FHR Tax THR TH7
At 1st January w—A—H 4,956 4,273 4,194 4,654 1,399 1,270 10,549 10,197
Credited/(charged) to BEAaBEERT
the consolidated AR
income statement 974 683 (724) (460) 1,669 129 1,919 352
At 31st December wrt+t-—A=+—8 5,930 4,956 3,470 4,194 3,068 1,399 12,468 10,549
Set-off of deferred tax R 5 4% &4 16 SR 84
liabilities pursuant to BRIEREEE
set-off provision (6,172) (6,717)
6,296 3,832
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss HUENEBERERAELEHRIEE
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of ENEE RSRERRUEELED
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits AREFRB A MERNOMBER
is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred T 2R MR o AN E I Mt Al 4
tax assets of HK$569,000 (2018: HK$525,000) LNV = 7 R 7 ST il O R A
in respect of losses amounting to HK$3,448,000 5 183,448,000 (=T — N\ F:
(2018: HK$5,064,000) that can be carried 5,064,0007% 7T) i R E T 1E & &=
forward against future taxable income. As at 31st 569,000/8 7T (=ZF — /A% : 525,000
December 2019, tax losses for which no deferred BIL) e RZE—NFF+A=+—
tax assets were recognised amounting to HK$nil H TERERECHBEEZH
(2018: HK$1,880,000) will expire in 5 years, and BEHE(ZZE — /U :1,880,000%
the remaining tax losses of HK$3,448,000 (2018: TTOBRAFAEE AERBRT
HK$3,184,000) has no expiry date. T E5183,448,000/8 L (=T —/)\F :
3,184,000 ) W EmE HA R -
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$4,575,000 (2018: REBIW R E THERGT B RE
HK$4,425,000) have not been recognised for the BAEMABTFINOERAGHME
withholding tax and other taxes that would be fth 54 T8 i 3R AT 7% 18 &1 184,575,000
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain B (= T — J\ F:4,425,000%
subsidiaries. Such amounts are permanently To) e WERERBF SHEERAL
reinvested. Unremitted earnings totalled HE - RZE—NF+A=1+—
HK$45,748,000 at 31st December 2019 (2018: H &) K (& R B F| & 45,748,000/

HK$44,245,000).

TT(ZZ— )\ : 44,245,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

1.

12.

Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the Group’s loss for the year of HK$13,198,000 (2018:
HK$1,760,000) divided by the weighted average number of
198,958,000 (2018: 198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

In both 2019 and 2018, diluted loss per share is the same
as basic loss per share due to the absence of dilutive
potential ordinary shares during the reporting period.

Staff Costs (Including Directors’
Emoluments)

11. BREE
FREAEEDREAEBEARAFEEIA
13,198,000/% 7t (= & — J\ 4 : 1,760,000
BB UNFERB BT ZER 2 N
F 19 £198,958,000% (= & — )\ 4
198,958,000/% ) s+ & -

RZE-NFREZZE-N\F ARBREH

MRAAEE#EELERR WERES
BEEEGHEREANEBERER -

12. EIREA(BREEHN2)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits ~ T& - % Bl 2 58 92 Bh
(Note) (Bt =%) 87,229 91,942
Social security costs HERERAN 4,707 5,497
Pension costs — contribution to RIKK AR -2 25T &l
MPF scheme EH 2 K 428 450
Others Hfth 638 363
93,002 98,252

Note: Including employment termination compensation of
approximately HK$6,322,000 (2018: HK$2,735,000).

M sE: B 46,322,000 T (—ZZ — )\ F:
2,735,000 0) 7 BEBR 4 B (E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors
and Key Management

(a)

Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2019 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s
services as a director or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

1B.EERFTEEBAEZERN

K HE &
(a) EE=HM

BE-_Z-NFT_A=1+—H8L
FE BREFTNHFHOT:

ENHEARIEMNBEXESRN
RHUHHEMEEREEHEEBAORSE 2
ATZMEHEEKMESMT

Contributions Other
Discretionary to MPF benefits
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses scheme (ii) Total
BES
Expns wne e HiERS sHEMR EwiEA (i) wm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERT THERT TET THET THERT
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 - - 197 4,757
1R B i)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 - - 175 1,495
Baz
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 - 18 - 690
B K
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 355 - 18 - 373
W B R
MON Tiffany - 608 236 18 350 1,212
wER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - - 180
21 4% B2 (i)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - - 84
ZREN
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 120 - - - - 120

)
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

13. Benefits and

Interests of Directors

and Key Management (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2018 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s
services as a director or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

1B.EERTEEBAEZERN

K& s (48)
(a) EEZHM(E)

BE_ZT—)\&+_A=1+—BLIL#F
B SBREFTNHFHOT:

ENHEARIEMNBEXESRN

RHUHHEMEEREEHEEBEORSE 2
ATZMEHHEEKMES 0T

Contributions

Discretionary to MPF Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses scheme benefits (ii) Total
BIEE
g e e HiE#Re FHEHF HEaER i) k=]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT FTAT FAT FTAT FTAT
MON Chung Hung (i) - 4,560 45 - 185 4790
1R HE (i)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 18 - 179 1,517
B
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 50 18 68 808
929
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 3556 5 18 - 378
HER
MON Tiffany 5 514 22 18 338 892
HER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - - 180
IR BL()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - - 84
ZRE()
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 120 - - - - 120
#ERE()
(i)  Independent non-executive directors () BWUFERITES
(i)  Other benefits include commission and (i) HtteMeFHEsmas Rkl
insurance premium. R o
(i)  Chief Executive Officer (i) fTERAEE

During the year, no emolument paid or receivable
in respect of a person accepting office as a director
(2018: nil) and no director waived any emoluments
(2018: nil) or compensation for loss of office (2018:
nil).

REANEEREIZERL BRI
R & (—F —\F : &) ARIEAE
EEMEMS (ZT—N\F 8B
BROMECE-N\F &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Interests of Directors

and Key Management (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2018: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2018: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31st December 2019, the
Group did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2018: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31st December 2019, there is
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled body
corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2018: nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2018: nil).

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

~hEFZAZ+ AL FEE

HEr—=F

1B.EERTEEBAEZERN

R ()
(b) EENENKREF
FA - BIEE SR R EYCGRR
BR(ZE—NF:E)-
(c) EENARLER

(d)

(e)

(f)

FAOBMEESEINRBRAL
EERBEMNCFE-NFE)-

REREERBEMAL=SFE
HEYE

BE-T-NF+-A=T—HILHF
B ANEEYR A B E E R
MxME=THHE T \F:

BHE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HILF
B BENER EF2RE %lJ}i
BrLEEEBRARBAZER £
ERREMRS (ZF—\F:HE)-

ESERS  ZHERERANE
RS

Y EAMARBEBTARAIER
Eh—p BARRAEERER (TR
EESRIE) BH B A = (RAE
FIE SR FREFEE) 0 E AR
5 RYERBK(ZE—N\F &)«
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors

and Key Management (Continued)

(g) Five highest paid individuals
In 2019 and 2018, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group included
three (2018: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2018:

1&%$gi§%&k§2ﬁﬂ

R i (1)

(g) ENEEHFMAL
RZE—NFR-ZT—N\F - AfAK
EEESHMATBE= (= —
JE ZRES R ESIME
EHAREXOH - AEBINTH
BREA(—T—\F WA A TR E

two) individuals during the year are as follows: BT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHE T

Basic salaries, other allowances and & Z&R#FH 4 ~ HM 2 &
benefits in kind YA &= 2,057 1,849
Discretionary bonuses [k 110 686

Pension costs — contribution to MPF iRk AN — 38 f& & 51 2
scheme E 2 3K 32 32
2,199 2,567

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

WEMSE T HE:

Number of individuals

ABEH
2019 2018
—E-NE —EF—-)\F
Nil = HK$1,000,000 078 7T £1,000,0007%8 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T &
1,500,000/ JT 1 -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,600,001 T &

2,000,000% 7T - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

BE-—FT—NF+ZA=1—HIFE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors 13. EERFTEEE AEZREF

and Key Management (Continued) M= (&)
(h) Key management compensation (h) EEEEAE 2 H

Key management includes all directors presented
above and five (2018: five) senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management

TEEEABREMEEERAM
(ZZ-N\F HfI)SHREELAE -
MEZEEABXMEREERS

for employee services is shown below: WENKENB ST :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHE T
Basic salaries, other allowances and EA¥ 4 - H# 2EE &
benefits in kind B =@ 11,622 11,354
Discretionary bonuses Hi5i€ e 394 835
Pension costs — contribution to MPF iRk X — & f& £ 51 2
scheme B Z R 123 117
12,139 12,306

The emoluments of senior management (excluding
directors) are within the following bands:

BREEABZHME(TERESR)
ETIIEE :

Number of individuals

AEHEHE
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Nil = HK$1,000,000 0/%&70%1,000,000/8 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L &
1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,600,001 L &=

2,000,000% 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

14. Land Use Rights

The Group's interests in land use rights represented
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book

values are analysed as follows:

14. X i {F B #E

AEBERNTFEREZ RS RANKEE
HEFHALEREFEITOT:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FHET

At 1st January n—H—H 26,696 28,470
Reclassified to right-of-use assets B BB % s AR
upon adoption of HKFRS 16 FI6HMEFDER

EREEE (26,696) -

Amortisation of land use rights b fP R R R - (715)

Exchange adjustment b 2 3 & - (1,059)

At 31st December ®R+=—A=+—H - 26,696




15. Lease

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

15. &

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) REEHBHRERREIZEHE
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position

(a)

RAaMBRRNERIRATEEE

shows the following amounts relating to leases: Ealsoicak:
Right-of-use assets (a) FERAEEE
The Group recognised right-of-use assets AEBECHERUTEEELN
relating to the following types of assets: FRAEEE:
Land use
rights
outside HK Property Total
Bt
EAE L/ i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER
Net book value as at RZT—N\F
31st December 2018 +-A=+—-82
REFE - - -
Reclassified from land use B #E 78 B 75 3] & % A
rights upon adoption of Bl MEF DA
HKFRS 16 T A 26,696 - 26,696
Net book value at RZF-hF—A—HBz
1st January 2019, FEFE L5
as restated 26,696 - 26,696
Addition NE - 892 892
Depreciation e (696) (334) (1,030)
Exchange adjustment ERFE (62) - (62)
Net book value at RZZE—-NF
31st December 2019 +-A=+—-82

EEFE 25,938 558 26,496
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

#HE—

15.

—NEFTZA=1—HIFEF

Lease (Continued)

15. FHE (&

)
EHBBRERZEH

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) RER
statement of financial position (&
(Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAE
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hEF ZE-NF
+=-HA=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Current Bl EA 451 -
Non-current JEENHA 77 -
528 -

In the previous year, the Group only recognised
lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to
leases that were classified as ‘finance leases’
under HKAS 17 “Leases”. For adjustments
recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1st
January 2019, please refer to note 2.1.

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement

EF - ASBERIRRES
BETENEI7TRIAE 58
Pjhﬁé%ﬂ%JZ%ﬂ% BRANME

5?&@ EaE - BABR
—E-NEFE-A—BEHEE
Eﬁ%#ﬁc‘i;ﬁﬁﬂ F165: R 2 7
ﬁng ’ uﬁ/lsﬂlzﬁuiz'l °

(i) RGERERBERAZEH

The consolidated income statement shows the BEBmRITUATHEEERED
following amounts relating to leases: R
31 December
2019
—E-NF
+t=A=+—H
HK$'000
FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRABEENERS
- Land use rights outside Hong Kong - BN b A 696
- Property - W 334
1,030
Interest expense (included in finance costs) FER X (GTAFEERRN) 21
Expenses relating to short-term leases and EHHEREKEEHENHEE
low-value leases (included in cost of sales GEICIN X e e
and general administrative expenses) BHAX) 113
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was —“NFRNHERSRLAHEA
HK$498,000. 498,000/ JT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR E(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. 1% - WMERZE

Land and buildings

(notes (a] to (c))
THRET Furniture
(M3E@ZE(©) Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor  Pleasure Construction
In HK Outside HK improvements ~ machinery  fixtures equipment  vehicles boats in progress Total
Ki bR HEXE BERES GAREE BOZERE RE id ERIR &%
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
ThL ThL Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Net book value at WZE-NE-A-HZ
1st January 2019 FEFE 139,070 197,183 2,193 12,446 708 4,285 3,094 4,219 38,809 402,067
Additions RE - - - 5,058 - 669 409 - 8,421 14,557
Disposals/write-off e/ - - - (377) - (28) (176) - - (581)
Depreciation g (4,880) (7,592) (1,100 (4,633) (25) (705) (630) (408) - (19973)
Revaluation gff (16,760) 17,077 - - - - - - - 317
Transfer % - 44484 2,894 - - - - - (47,378) -
Exchange adjustment Exge - (1,573) 325 (112) (6) (84) (10) - 148 (1,312)
Net book value at RZZ-NE
315t December 2019 f-R=t-Hz
FEFE 117,430 249,579 4,312 12,382 677 4137 2,687 387 - 395,075
At 31t December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=t+-8
At cost WA - - 15,194 91,634 5,041 14,659 6,920 14,421 - 147,869
At valuation - 2019 HE--E-NE 117,430 249,579 - - - - - - - 367,009
Accumulated depreciation 2RNE - - (10,882) (79,252) (4,364) (10,522) (4,233) (10,550) - (119,803
Net book value FEFE 117,430 249,579 4,312 12,382 677 4137 2,687 387 - 395,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR E(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. ¥/ ¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)
Land and buildings
(notes fa) to (c))
T REF Furniture
(HEERZEC) Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor  Pleasure Construction
In HK OQutside HK  improvements ~ machinery ~ fixtures equipment  vehicles boats in progress Total
it 5 REXE HMERES FLREE BAZRE RE BRE  ERIR &g
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TEL TET TEr T#Ex Tz TEr Thxn TErT  TEx
Net book value at RZE-\F-A-H
Ist January 2018 ZEEFE 125,870 192,998 2,932 10,927 729 4,506 2,99 4,684 15 345,655
Additions RE - - - 4,882 - 453 842 45 39,933 46,155
Disposals LE - - - - - (1) (131) - - (132)
Depreciation neE (4,267)  (6,325) (648) (2,606) (18) (547) (570) 450) - (15431)
Revaluation B 17,467 21,575 - - - - - - - 39,042
Exchange adjustment ExHE - (11,065) 91) (757) (3) (126) (41) - (1,139)  (13,222)
Net book value at RZZE-N\F
31st December 2018 +ZA=+-Rz
FEFE 139,070 197,183 2,193 12,446 708 4,285 3,094 4,279 38,809 402,067
At 31st December 2018 R-E-N\E
+ZA=+-8
At cost AR - - 12,345 88,545 5079 14,166 7120 14,421 38,809 180,485
At valuation - 2018 fE--F-\% 139,070 197,183 - - = - - N - 336,253
Accumulated depreciation 2B E - - (10,152) (76,0990 (4371)  (9.881)  (4,026)  (10,142) - (14,671)
Net book value EATE 139,070 197,183 2,193 12,446 708 4,285 3,094 4,279 38,809 402,067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(a)

Land and buildings in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued on the basis of buildings in open
market value by direct comparison approach and
depreciated replacement cost approach, respectively,
by Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December
2019 and 2018. Buildings in Vietnam were revalued
on the basis of open market value by depreciated
replacement cost approach by CBRE Vietnam Co.,
Ltd., an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
as at 31st December 2019. The following tables
analyse the land and buildings carrying at fair value,
by valuation techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

BE-—FT—NF+ZA=1—HIFE

16. 1% - MERKRHE (H)

(a)

RZE—NER_T—\F+=-A=
+—H UREBRPERRENL
i K2 4 T B 98 S (H (B D A RO
EMTAERARDRZREFTART
BEZEEFEREBRELELBERTESR
BERAEERG R —-hE+=
F=+—H URBENEFTHB
3745 8 2 B 17 CBRE Vietnam Co.,
LdiZARMmEZEEFBTES
ERAKEMR ATNERIEF A
HERMOTEARBAEN T
MiEF -

DREER

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2019 using

“E-NFTZA=t-BEANUT

WANAAEBETE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEEER BEARMHEAM EDN: ]
Description #it SERHENERE THEEHGA FTIBERHBA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B5—#) (=) (BE=#H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET THERT
Recurring fair value REMDAEFE
measurements
Land or/and buildings: T,/ RETF:
- in Hong Kong -fREB - - 117,430
- in Mainland China - R B K B - - 205,865
- in Vietnam ~ (LA - - 43,714
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

HE—F—NF+-A=+—AULFE
16. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(@)  (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

16. 1% - MERKRHE (H)

(a) (Z:)
DMRERBR(E)

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2018 using
TE-N\F+-A=+-—HBEBUT

BANARERE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HRZEE®E AN EAM ESWNE:N
Description i g ERMERNRE ABERHEA TaUBEREA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—%) (=) (F=ZH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET TAET
Recurring fair value KEERAARETE
measurements
Land and/or buildings: Tk, Mg
- in Hong Kong -fRE % - - 139,070
- in Mainland China NN - - 197,183

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

There was no transfer among levels 1, 2, and 3
during the vyear.

As one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market date, the property, plant and
equipment of the Group is categorised as level 3.

AEEZBRERERER 2EMH
jziaiimibﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ REARELR

REER-

REARAE— —R=FzELEH
% o

MR —AXZEEANEATIFRE

AEBEMSHE  AAKEYE -
BEMKBIERE=H -



Annual Report 2019 £ iR @
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. ¥ ¥ - BENRE (@)

(Continued)

(a)  (Continued) (@) (&)
Fair value measurements using significant FAEXRTTBEEHANRABE
unobservable inputs (Level 3) E(E=H)

31st December 2019
—E-nF+ZA=t—-H
Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland Buildings in

Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
NREBZ NRHE R
THREF KEZEF ZEF k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
At 1st January 2019 —E-hEF
—A—HA 139,070 197,183 - 336,253
Transfer from BEEIREY
construction-in-
progress - - 44,484 44,484
Depreciation nE (4,880) (6,805) (787) (12,472)
Revaluation (deficit)/ EfH(BRXR) /B4
surplus (16,760) 17,063 14 317
Exchange adjustment b & 3 & - (1,576) 3 (1,573)
At 31st December 2019 RZ-ZT—HF
+t=A=+—-R 117,430 205,865 43,714 367,009
Revaluation surplus for & AE Ei’%E’JEﬁE
the year included g (X)) /A
in the consolidated FEPRANFE
income statement ZEMBH

at the end of the
year, under ‘other
operating (expenses)/
income, net’

- 138 - 138
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

M= - BERSKE(E)

(%)

16. Property,

(Continued)
(a)  (Continued) (a)

Plant and Equipment 16.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

MAEXTTEERANDAET
EB(B=HR)(E)

31st December 2018

—2—\FT-A=1-H

Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
R EBEZ MRFRBEXE
T REF ZEF e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET TERT
At 1st January 2018 RZFE—-NFE—H—H 125,870 192,998 318,868
Depreciation nE (4,267) (6,325) (10,592)
Revaluation surplus EHZH 17,467 21,575 39,042
Exchange adjustment fE &R - (11,065) (11,065)
At 31st December 2018 RZ-ZZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—8H 139,070 197,183 336,253
Revaluation surplus for FiReaBRRNEMEE
the year included WA/ (%) FEH
in the consolidated BRAEE  EHBH
income statement at
the end of the year,
under ‘other operating
income/(expenses),
net’ - 1,738 1,738
Valuation processes of the Group AEEBNEHERE

The Group's land and buildings were valued at
31st December 2019 and 2018 by independent
professional qualified valuers who hold recognised
relevant professional qualifications and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the land
and buildings valued. For all land and buildings, their
current use equates to the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department considers and
discusses the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes,
including all key inputs to the valuations and property
valuations movements as compared to the prior
year. At 31st December 2019, the fair values of
the properties have been determined by Centaline
Surveyors Limited and CBRE Vietnam Co., Ltd (2018:
Centaline Surveyors Limited).

AEEN I EREFHBLEER
EBEME_ZE—NEER_ZFT—NF+
“A=+—HEHE " LEHERMEF
EHBERITEEER  THMEE
B - Hb I 12 7 &9 i BE RN <B 13 A i HA
KEe o AL RIET - A
NERAERESEMEESFR -

AEBPB BT BHRE BN B
VBN EEETEE RN ®
BREYEHENETEHARYE
HEEFFEERETHES KB
Z—NF+-_BA=+—"H k&Y
E¥MARNBEEAPRAEMITER
‘A 8] CBRE Vietnam Co., Ltd. (=
T—NF:AHRRIEMITERRA)
EBIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Valuation techniques

For land and buildings in Hong Kong, the valuation
was determined using the direct comparison
approach with reference to comparable transactions
available in the relevant market. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square foot.

For buildings in Mainland China, the valuation
was determined using both the direct comparison
approach which reference to the sales prices
per square foot of comparable properties and
the depreciated replacement cost approach with
reference to the current cost of replacing an asset
with its modern equivalent asset less deductions for
all physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimisation based on significant
unobservable inputs.

For buildings in Vietnam, the valuation was
determined using depreciated replacement cost
approach with reference to the cost of construction
per square metre in the relevant locations, with
allowance for accrued depreciation as evidence by
observed condition or obsolescence present. These
inputs include:

Cost of construction

Cost per square metre to completion estimated
by the valuer using direct market comparables and
taking into account the useful life and size of the
property and its facilities as at 31st December 2019
and 2018.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straight-
line method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic
obsolescence and adjusting by the physical condition
of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

HE-F-AF+=A=+—AULFE

16. 1% - MERKRHE (H)

(a)

(%)

fl {6 B 1l
NREBBNLHWEEFOREESZE
HEAMSALRZXZMAERLR
EEE c IR BMENEE
ERTIERHWIMYERE) WNE
REHHE - BUHMBEEINREK
BWARBYIROERS -

fRPEAENBFEHEE FBE
BHEOR(2EALEMETFAIR
M EER) RITEEEKAL (R
EURSEEEENMMTEER
BRABRELEBEREANRER
BIEEEEENRAKAE)  HEKX
TABRBAERE -

R BEENEFEHE 2ZHEL
BZBV I RBEERANBITES
ERAELETE Wt ARBERE
MR S 3k PR B 3R AR 2 R AT AT B
weRTBARE:

ii =L @ @
HFEMR-_E—NFER=_ZE—-NF
T A=+ BEAEEMBLR
FEWKRFAMER LR B FE R
;%&E%ﬁ%ﬁ%iiﬁx%ﬁ
o

HATE
B PR B AR 5 1B T 4 PR 4E B
R OB B - @ EE R B
A AL T 4008 | 018 FE - 31 1218
TE PSRRI -

1 P B B 10 3 4 52 B o
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

E-F-NEF oAt —ALEE

16. Property,

(Continued)
(@)  (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Plant and Equipment

as at 31st December 2019

Description

i

Valuation technique

fEE R

(a) (&

16. 1% - MERKHE (&

R-FB-NE+-A=+—-HERE
RFAAEERRANIAETENE

B(E=4)

Unobservable inputs

TAEEHA

Relationship of unobservable inputs
to fair value

TAEEBAHDAENBE

Buildings in Heyuan,
Mainland China
iz B B K B AR 19 48 T

Buildings in Shenzhen,
Mainland China
R ERERYIMEF

Buildings in Vietnam

R BEeET

Land and buildings in
Hong Kong
URBEBO L RIET

Direct comparison
approach and
Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

BEELBERNESR
ER AL

Direct comparison
approach and
Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

ERUHBERITES
BRARE

Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

TEEERNE

Direct comparison
approach

HERLBE

Cost of construction of RMB1,650
(2018: RMB1,650) per square metre

BEXAEAETFHARKARKLE507T
(ZZ-N\F: AR¥1,6507T)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful life of 40 years
(2018: 41 years)

RAGBERNN+FREAFE
(Z2-N\F:B+—F)

Cost of construction of RMB3,850
(2018: RMB3,450) per square metre

BERMARETHAANRES8507T
(ZZ2—-N\F: AR%3,4507T)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful life of 24 years
(2018: 25 years) and 37 years
(2018: 38 years) respectively

DRIRAEREHN -+ WEF
(ZE-NF:Z+REF)R=T++F
(ZE-NF:ZTN\E) BT E

Cost of construction of USD267
(2018: nil) per square metre

BREARE T K267ET
(Z2—N\F: &)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful life of 40 years
(2018: nil) and 25 years (2018: nil)
respectively

DRIRAERFE RN+ F
(Z2-NF:E)R-T1F
(ZE-N\F:E)AHAFE

Sales prices, HK$15,771 (2018:
HK$18,677) per square foot of
a comparable property in close
proximity

FEBENEHERSHZ
REFFHRISITET
(ZZT—N\%F 18,6774 1)

The higher the estimated cost per
square metre to completion, the
higher the fair value.

STk ERRALE - AREEH -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

Bt EES  AAEBE -

The higher the estimated cost per
square metre to completion, the
higher the fair value.

BYAREARARR  RAEHS -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

B FELR  AAEBE -

The higher the estimated cost per
square metre to completion, the
higher the fair value.

SEIKERRALE - AAEEH -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

et FEES  AABEBE -

The higher the sales price per square
foot of a comparable property in close
proximity, the higher the fair value.

BYRRZABEEMEHERI IR
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17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(b)

The net book value of these land and buildings would
have been HK$140,215,000 (2018: HK$99,830,000)
had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation on the historical cost basis.

At 31st December 2019, the net book value of
land and buildings located in Hong Kong, which
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to HK$$117,430,000 (2018:
HK$139,070,000).

Included in the total depreciation expenses,
amounting to HK$14,053,000 (2018: HK$9,204,000)
and HK$5,920,000 (2018: HK$6,227,000) were
charged to cost of sales and administrative
expenses, respectively.

Investment Properties

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

HE-F-AF+=A=+—AULFE

16. 1% - MERKRHE (H)

(b)

MZETHREFHEES K AZ
EEDNAERZBETESE - 8
% E IR FE JE A140,215,00078 7T
(=ZZ— \4 : 99,830,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE—-AE+=-_B=+—8" &
R ES $£117,430,0008 T (ZZE—
J\EE 1 139,070,000/ 7T ) Z f1 N & 4
I REF  BEAEASLERTT
B\ -

A E S HE 14,053,000 T (=
T — )\ : 9,204,000/ 7)) st AHHE
B 7K 125,920,000 7T (ZF — )\ 4F -
6,227,000/ 7o) s AT X ©

17. BEWHE

2019 2018
=F-NF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
At fair value b7 @/NVIL =]
Opening balance at 1st January N—RA—B2ZHY%HE 55,290 52,150
Revaluation (loss)/gain credited B BKR) FBFAGE
to the consolidated income Ea
statement (8,090) 3,140
Closing balance at 31st December R+—A=+—82
H K #R 58 47,200 55,290

(a)

Amounts of (i) rental income and (ii) direct operating
expenses from the investment properties, which
were recognised in the consolidated income
statement, are disclosed in note 8.

As at 31st December 2019, the carrying amount
of investment properties pledged as security
for the Group's bank borrowings amounted to
HK$27,100,000 (2018: HK$31,500,000)

As at 31st December 2019 and 2018, the Group
has no unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance.

For the minimum lease payments receivables on
leases of investment properties, refer to note 28(c).

RiGAERRRINNEL KA R
(REME BERGERZSER
i sEe 4k 5 -

RZZE—-NAF+-_A=+—8 " FM@\
& A&27,100,0008 L (Z T — N\F:
31,500,000/ L) 2K EWE - B1E
BAREEIFITERZER -

RZE—NER_FT-)\F+=A=
+—H AEEVTEHARK Z4HE
LREBBZABBAEHEE -

BERREMEHERKZ REHE
BN F2HME280) -
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

#HE—

—NEFTZA=1—HIFEF

17. Investment Properties (Continued)

(e)

The Group’s investment properties are held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties through sale. The
Group has measured the deferred tax relating to
the temporary differences of these investment
properties using the tax rate and the tax bases that
are consistent with the expected manner of recovery
of these investment properties.

Investment properties were revalued on the basis of
open market valued by direct comparison approach
by Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December
2019 and 2018. The revaluation gains or losses are
included in ‘other operating (expenses)/income, net’
in the consolidated income statement. The following
table analyses the investment properties carried at
fair value, by valuation techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

17. Tﬁﬁ%%(mﬁ)

HEASEREMEZEN - §
MHEMBRB AL RANRA
MEEND - AKEEFEREZS
BREWMEBRHPRE T A - 2B =X
ERE SHEARZEREMEZ
EREZR IR IBELERIE -

RZE—NER_T—\F+=-A=
+—H REVELRBIYZEEME
B RAEMITERARIEART
EBEZEEFREELELAEMR - &
HEBFDNAAGAEZER T HMAL
2FEL)/ WMAFEIR - TR
FEBERMOITEAARBAERD
HEYE -

DREEBR

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2019 using
“E-hFE+=ZA=1+—H
FERANTHANARERNE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEREE®R BEANHEM EWN:Y|
Description it EEMENRE TEEHA FTUBEEHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(—4) (=) (B=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET THERT
Recurring fair value BEEARETE
measurements
Investment properties BEME - - 47,200
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17. Investment Properties (Continued)

(f)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

17. REWMWE(E)

(Continued) (f) (F
Fair value hierarchy AREER
Fair value measurements at
31st December 2018 using
—E-\FE+ZA=+—H
ERANTHANRABEGE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREEE BEARMEM ESWNEN
Description i Bl ERMISMIRE ERE A B R A
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—#&) (B FE=/)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET TAET
Recurring fair value REMDAEE
measurements
Investment properties BEME - - 55,290

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfers.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

As one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market date, the investment
properties of the Group are categorised as level 3.

Valuation processes of the Group
See note 16(a) for valuation processes of the Group.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was
determined using the direct comparison approach
with reference to comparable transactions available
in the relevant market. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size.
The most significant input into this valuation approach
is price per square foot.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the vyear.

AEB YRR EREHEY 2 EMH
HIRBEFHOEEREASLELA
AEEH -

“h=HRzEBES

i — B 5 % I8 B AH A IEIR I
MBS TSRS - MR E A
¥5WAE=R -

ZFEIH’HEEEE
BHL2EHMF16@QAEENGEENRE
#15 -

& 1B B 1if

REWEXNGBEESZHEAMSALL
BRXHNBERLBOEEE - £#
AL B ENEBC R ERSH
(PlanmERBE)NERELFE -
HUHEEINREABARE YA
REERE -

FABERMILEES -
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17. REWE(E)
(f)  (Continued) (f) (&)
Information about fair value measurements R-ZE-NAE+=-A=+—HEHRE
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) RATBEERGAHB(E=ZR)2A
as at 31st December 2019 AREFEZEHR

Relationship of unobservable inputs

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs to fair value
#15 i /B 5 9fF FTOBEZRARE THEZBABBRAAEZER
Land and buildings in Direct comparison (1) Sales prices, HK$5,061 The higher the sales prices per square
Hong Kong approach (2018: HK$5,882) per square foot foot of a comparable property in close
NRBEAZLHREF HELEE of a comparable property in close proximity, the higher the fair value
proximity BERARGEHEEDEHERFIZAE

MEEENEHERIZRE
¥ 5 R5,061%8 T
(ZZ—-N\%¥:588287T)

(2) Sales prices, HK$16,736
(2018: HK$19,808) per square
foot of a comparable property in
close proximity

MEHBENEHERIZRE
BT HR16,7363 T
(ZZ—\5 :19,808/% 7T)

BE - AAEES

18. Inventories 18. 78

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHE T

Raw materials & 31,235 20,138

Work in progress EE @ 16,720 23,251

Finished goods 8K @ 68,008 54,152

115,963 97,541

Provision for slow-moving EREERE

inventories (5,902) (6,607)

110,061 90,934
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and FEKRANPERAERIL I ATHEEK
included in "cost of sales” amounted to HK$148,684,000 N H) 4 58 H51148,684,0008 L (—F —
(2018: HK$206,704,000). Reversal of provision (2018: J\EE : 206,704,000 7T) o i 17 & [ %
provision) for slow-moving inventories of HK$705,000 —F—)\F : #F)705,0008 (= F —
(2018: HK$298,000) was included in “cost of sales” in the J\HF 298,000/ ) D st ABRAEREK

consolidated income statement. [48 &R A o



Annual Report 2019 £ iR @

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

19. Trade and Bill Receivables 19. EREZFEREZRE
(a) At 31st December 2019, the ageing analysis of trade (@ RZZE-NFT-A=+—8"EIK
and bill receivables based on invoice date is as BOEFEEEREBEZZAHZE
follows: BT
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Up to 3 months BMERZE =@ A 57,501 76,900
4-6 months & Az 7S E A 16,068 12,684
Over 6 months it i@ 75 8 A 8,348 846
\ 81,917 90,330
Provision for impairment loss B R B (754) -
81,163 90,330
(b)  Trade and bill receivables are denominated in the b)) EUEZIERREBRUTIEES
following currencies: 18-
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT ) 25,527 18,768
RMB AR 8,808 5,587
usD ETT 46,828 65,975
81,163 90,330
(c) The carrying value of trade and bill receivables ) EREFEFEZEBCEmERH
approximate their fair values due to their short term AAEROFAERFR -
maturities.
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to AEBRBEBYEREENFIRD
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime {EFEFHEBRBEEEE  RAEEK
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. There 5 MR B E & H 0 8 B 1R A
were no historical credit losses incurred over existing B - REZFITEELAFSLEEESE
customers and the overall default rate of corporate MEFENBEEENEEYERSBET LK
remained relatively stable and low. However, as at 31st KE o« Riff - RZE—NF+ZA=+—
December 2019, the directors of the Group were of the B AEEEERABEZEARTERFPA
opinion that a provision for impairment loss of HK$754,000 $2754,0008 L2 B BHEEME -

was necessary for a particular customer.
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

20. Derivative Financial Instruments 20. fTESEMIA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets at fair value through ZAREFAEZRBFAKR
profit or loss and included in the SEEGEEUBRAER
Group's consolidated statement of MBEENVEEE
financial position as current assets
Foreign exchange forward HNE R B & 4
contracts 495 —
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has certain RZE-—hAhFE+-_A=+—H A5EHH

21.

outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts (2018:
nil) with an external reputable bank with long positions
in RMB (2018: nil) for hedging its purchase transactions
denominated in RMB. The fair value of the foreign
exchange forward contracts is determined by using
valuation techniques. The valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. As
all significant inputs regarded to fair value on instruments
are observable, the instruments are included in level 2.

—RNBEERFZRTAESETHARE
TZNEERHAaN(ZTE-N\F &) ¥
MARBER(ZZE—N\F:£) A%
HEUARBFENRERS - SMNEEH
BHzAREBELRABERMEE -
ExfMEENBAIBERSHEEA) -
BEOERBERBZEEMGE  ARE
TAZRARERBZIABEERBARH
BREHE AEZETANAEZ_E -

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign RZE-—NF+_A=+—H  AkXE
exchange forward contracts at 31st December 2019 were TZIINERMENZEZRASELNR
approximately US$4,000,000 (2018: nil). 4,000,000E T (=T —\F  F) -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 21. RERREEEY
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Cash at banks and in hand RITMEFER® 36,548 49,996
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 21. B REELEEYW (&)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the RBERRAEBR R A EERRKRZRT
reporting period of the Group is cash at banks amounting R& 2’ D 5/536,206,000% 7T
to HK$36,206,000 (2018: HK$49,789,000). —ZF—)\4% :49,789,000/8 7T) °
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Denominated in: HEER:
HK$ 7 T 7,294 14,154
RMB AR 13,450 13,769
usD ETT 15,453 21,778
Other currencies Hih B 351 295
36,548 49,996
Included in the balance are bank balances and cash HEAIEERR AR R B 2R 1T4
deposited in Mainland China and Vietnam of approximately & 38 & 17 5 9» 5l 49 /13,450,000 7T &
HK$13,450,000 and HK$213,000 (2018: HK$10,502,000 213,000/ ;o (=& — )\ & : 10,502,000/%
and HK$143,000), respectively, which are mainly T K%143,00087m) EXZUARB R B
denominated in RMB and VND and are subject to the MEAEBEMIZMRMN A E K MK
exchange control restrictions imposed by the governments T & B 2 SNEE Bl A8 5 o
in Mainland China and Vietnam.
22. Share Capital 22, A
No. of shares HK$'000
HmEE FET
Authorised V5 TE AR
At 1st January 2018 and RZE-NF—H—BK
31st December 2018 and ZE-N\ERZZE-NF
2019, ordinary shares of +=—A=+—8"
HK$0.10 each FIEEO0.10/8 T 2 i@ MK 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRHRERAE
At 1st January 2018 and RZE-—NF—HA—BK
31st December 2018 and ZE-NFRZZ-NF
2019, ordinary shares of +=—A=+—8"
HK$0.10 each BREBEIOB T2 EBR 198,958,000 19,896
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

23. Reserves

23. #1E

Land and
Exchange buildings Capital
Share fluctuation revaluation redemption Total other Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
Ex28 ITHRETF BEXEE BEM

R EE e EfifiE ] e REEBA Fok )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEL FET FET FHEL FET FET FET

At 1st January 2019 RZZE-h&E—H—H 15,885 1,418 244,574 104 261,981 296,208 558,189

Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (13,198) (13,198)
Revaluation surplus on land and THREFZ

buildings EERH - - 181 - 181 - 181

Deferred tax charged to revaluation NhERHEZ

reserve ERERE - - (341) - (341) - (341)

Currency translation difference EEHREZER - (2,203) - - (2,203) - (2,203)
At 31st December 2019 RZZE-N%F

+ZA=+-H 15,885 (785) 244,414 104 259,618 283,010 542,628

At 1st January 2018 R-ZE-NF—A—H 15,885 14,779 213,785 104 244,553 297,968 542,521

Loss for the year AEEREAE - - - - - (1,760) (1,760)
Revaluation surplus on land and THREFZ

buildings ERRH - - 37,304 - 37,304 - 37304

Deferred tax charged to revaluation NhEREEZ

reserve EEHIR - - (6,515) - (6,515) - (6,515)

Currency translation difference ERABEER - (13,361) = - (13,361) - (13,361)
At 31st December 2018 RZZ—\F

+-—A=+t—-H 15,885 1,418 244,574 104 261,981 296,208 558,189

24. Trade Payables and Other Payables 24. FE{4 & 5 R & H b FE {3 &
HREGTHAX

and Accruals

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FE T

Trade payables (note (a)) FE & 5 R 3k (M 7% (a) 17,749 17,387
Other payables and accruals EMEMNRIERETRAX 18,971 29,783
Total (notes (b) and (c)) 4278 (M 3 (b) & (c) 36,720 47,170
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For the year ended 31st December 2019

BE-_F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE
24. Trade Payables and Other Payables 24. FE{} & 5 iR F & H b FE {3 =
and Accruals (Continued) HR BT X (&)
(a) At 31st December 2019, the ageing analysis of trade (a) B’\\\ T—hF+-—A=+—8 EfR
payables based on invoice date is as follows: = ErEfo BEZEAH KRR DT
mF
2019 2018
—E-hEF )\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Up to 3 months BNERZ= =1{& A 15,709 15,030
4-6 months @& Az 7X@ A 1,907 2,096
Over 6 months it i@ 75 1 A 133 261
17,749 17,387
(b)  Trade payables and other payables and accruals are (b) JETTE 5 BRI K H b 5118 K& JE
denominated in the following currencies: AREUTYEREEHE:
2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 9,409 11,271
RMB AR 17,773 22,149
usD ETT 6,463 7,046
Other currencies Hiv B 3,075 6,704
36,720 47,170
(c) The carrying value of trade payables and other (c) JENE SRR K HEMERNFIARE
payables and accruals approximate their fair values ARYcEEEEAEALBEBROR
due to their short term maturities. HEFH o
25. Borrowings 25. B
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Current liabilities REEME
Trust receipt loans FEEWIEE R 31,435 24,734
Bank loans RITE R 37,000 36,800
Total borrowings FEREE Y 68,435 61,534
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
oo -

25. Borrowings (Continued)
included secured
(2018: HK$44,734,000),

—NEFTZA=1—HIFEF

Total borrowings
HK$56,435,000

liabilities of
which are

secured by certain land and buildings and investment
properties of the Group (notes 16 and 17). The borrowings
of HK$68,435,000 are also supported by guarantees given
by the Company and certain subsidiaries.

25.

B (&)
ﬁwﬁ’*a%ﬁﬁﬁ%{ﬂmw 0007 JT
(ZZF—/\F : 44,734,000/ 70) U N EEH
METLHREFREEDEERT
FF16%17) » 68,435,000 JT B & X 78 |
KRB RETHB AR EHIER -

(a)  The maturity of borrowings in accordance with the () AR IEE FRES ) R (7% = 8 B K AR
repayment schedule (without taking into account the XEER) BEXROHHBEHT
repayment on-demand clause) is as follows:

Bank loans Trust receipt loans
RITER ERRBEER

2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-hEFE ZE-N\F ZE-hF ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FAET FET FET

Within 1 year 1A 29,800 24,800 31,435 24,734
Between 1 and 2 122%F

years 7,200 4,800 - -
Between 2 and 5 ENY:S

years - 7,200 - -

37,000 36,800 31,435 24,734

(b)  The average effective interest rates per annum as at b) RZE—NFF+ZA=+—HHF
31st December 2019 are as follows: BHEBFMEMAT:

2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
Trust receipt loans EFAREER 3.41% 3.48%
Bank loans RITE N 3.79% 3.05%
(c) Borrowings are mainly denominated in HKS$. () MERETEBUBTHEH-
(d) The carrying value of borrowings approximates their d BEFROEEEEEQIALEED -

fair values.
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

26. Financial Instruments by Category 26. ZERE TN EETIA

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been PMIEC S RECEARTIIER

applied to the line items below:

Financial

instruments

Financial at fair value
instruments at  through profit
amortised cost or loss

2 85 AR AR BAREFTA
IR EMIA BEMEMIA

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
31st December 2019 —E-hAhE+=ZA=+—8H
Assets as per consolidated IRGEMBMRRAKRZEE
statement of financial position
Trade and bill receivables EWEZERREE 81,163 -
Derivative financial instruments MEeR I A - 495
Other receivables and deposits HEmEWRERT® 5,919 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 36,548 -
123,630 495
Liabilities as per consolidated JIRGEMBERRKRZERE
statement of financial position
Trade payables B E SR 17,749 -
Other payables H fth J& 1 5RIR 6,337 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 528 -
Bank loans RITE XK 37,000 -
Trust receipt loans S WIEE R 31,435 -
93,049 -
31st December 2018 —E-NE+=A=+—H
Assets as per consolidated JIRGEMBRREZEE
statement of financial position
Trade and bill receivables ERESERRER 90,330 -
Other receivables and deposits Ef i skiE Rl & 9,811 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 49,996 -
150,137 -
Liabilities as per consolidated JIRGEMBERRKRZERE
statement of financial position
Trade payables e E SR 17,387 -
Other payables H o & < 3B 22,696 -
Bank loans IRITE R 36,800 -
Trust receipt loans SR REER 24,734 -

101,617 -
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

27. Notes to the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before (a) EEELENFRSHERKRBA
taxation to net cash generated from (E18),/ %Az ¥R
operations

2019 2018
—E-AF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(Loss)/profit before taxation Br &L AT (B518) i T (14,384) 622
Interest income F B A (98) (62)
Interest expense FMERX 2,468 1,523
Loss on disposal/write-off of HEMEnE - BE
property, plant and equipment REEE 57 31
Loss/(gain) on revaluation of KEMEBBEBRK
investment properties (FT1%) 8,090 (3.140)
Revaluation surplus of buildings EFEHRBH (138) (1,738)
Amortisation of land use rights o {55 PR E HE H - 715
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FHEZETE 1,030 -
Depreciation of property, plant and % - BMENFZEITE
equipment 19,973 15,431
Provision for impairment loss REEEEE 754 -
(Reversal of provision for)/provision 12 F1F & ([ &)~
for slow-moving inventories 1 (705) 298
Operating profit before working BEESEEN LY
capital changes il 17,047 13,780
- Inventories -EE (19,213) 8,358
— Trade and bill receivables and -EKREFERK
other receivables, deposits ZEREME
and prepayments WHIE - 5]T®
K Fa R IA 9,088 (14,642)
- Derivative financial instruments -THEemIA (495) -
— Trade payables and other - EHESERRHE
payables and accruals o E S FRIE &
J& &t B X (9,647) (5,462)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  2:&E (A1), EERX
operations FIH e (3,220) 2,034
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

27. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 27. ZEHRERERK T (E)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Analysis of disposal of property, plant (b) HEWE BERREIMN
and equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, FHReERERERAN DEWE -
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment B RS R
comprise:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Net book value BREFE 581 132
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE S HWIEDE - BB
property, plant and equipment FEEE (57) (31)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWME BER
plant and equipment BE=IECEN 524 101
(c) Non-cash investing and financing c) FBERERMETH
activity
A non-cash investing and financing activity relating HINBERAEEERAZIERSR
to acquisition of a right-of-use asset is disclosed in BERmEEESNM 158 E -

note 15.
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AR E(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

27. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 27. S HERERM T (&)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(d) Analysis of changes in cash flows from d REIBFRSRESRELY
financing activities i)

Bank loans Trust receipt loans Lease liabilities
BITEN EAUREER HEEE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-AF “F-\F “E-AF “F-\F “EF-AF “BN\F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TaR  TAT  Tax  TAx  Tax  Taxn

At st January ®—A—H 36,800 - 24,734 37,621 - -
Recognition of RMBEERBRE
lease liabilities A B E165;
on adoption of RHEEE
HKFRS 16 (Fff 5E1500)(b)
(note 15(i)(b)) - - - - 892 -
Additions B8 35,000 40,000 105,181 103,913 - -
Repayments B (34,800) (3,200) (98,480) (116,800) (364) -
At 31st December R+ZA=+—H 37,000 36,800 31,435 24,734 528 -
28. Commitments 28. & iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
At 31st December 2019, the Group had the following RZEBE-—NF+ZA=1T—8 &
capital commitments for property, plant and EEUTYE BMEREHEZER
equipment: HHE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Contracted but not provided for BRI B REE - 5,858
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28. Commitments (Continued)

(b) Commitments under operating leases as
lessee
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
on office and office equipment (2018: land and
buildings and office equipment) for the year ended
31st December 2019 as follows:

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

28. A& iE (1)
(b) LUEMEAGEEHERSR

BE_FT-NF+-_A=1+—AL
FE AEBZHRERBARE
R N\F L HMEEBFREAE
R PAHBEEEHETRARZ
REBEMNRBBAT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHE T

Not later than one year —F R 36 235
Later than one year and no later —FEBBTZRESF

than five years 29 50

65 285

(c) Commitments under operating lease as
lessor
At 31st December 2019, the Group had future
aggregate minimum rental receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

() UHBAREHERRE
N-ZEBE-AE+-_A=+—0 K&
BETORHELLEHERBRZR
REKRHAEREEENT:

Land and buildings

T REF
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Not later than one year —F R 920 700
Later than one year and not later —F%BTZRAEF
than five years 1,797 -

2,717 700

o
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

29.

30.

Financial Guarantees and Pledge 29. B & R & IK
At 31st December 2019, the Group had the following R-ZE—h&E+-_A=+—H KX5EH
banking facilities, of which approximately HK$173,040,000 AT ERITRLE - H A 49173,040,000% 7T
(2018: HK$186,000,000) were secured by legal charges —Z—/)\% :186,000,000 7T) AR EH
over certain land and buildings and investment properties BRMEEA £ 49144,530,0008 L (ZF—N
of the Group with a total carrying value of approximately % :170,570,0008 L) 2 &/ T L # RIEEF
HK$144,530,000 (2018: HK$170,570,000). MEEMEMEZEEMLIEER -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Trade and loan finance facilities BHRIEERE 185,040 206,000
Forward exchange contract line RHIINEGHREE 62,312 62,312
In addition, the Company and certain subsidiaries also poN  RRFIRAETHEB AR AR SEER
provided guarantees in favour of the banks to secure these BIRTAE  WERRITREER -
banking facilities granted to the Group.
Ultimate Holding Company 30. RAERAF

The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, as being the ultimate holding company and Mr.
Mon Chung Hung as being the ultimate controlling party.

ARAREERATERBREXESHM
Spector Holdings Limited b & 4% #25 f% /A &)
R dm IRIESE R ETERIT -
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

31. Subsidiaries 31. Mt B 2 A
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st RZE-—NFF+ZA=1+—H ' AQaHF
December 2019. ETIEEZWBAA :
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTRBRRE/
=L FE R i 2 AMEERFAEX TEEH &

2019 2018
—g-nE 2N

Shares held directly

EERARS
Perennial Holdings Global Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 Investment holding 100% 100%
EEAERES TmR1E T RERK
Shares held indirectly
MERARG
Ever Peak Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
KHERERAT Bt E®mBIET BREYE
Glitter Wire & Cable Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Investment holding 100% 100%
REEREEARDA Bt & 38 fR50078 T RERK
Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
ERRRETRG
2,000,000 7T
New Technology Cable Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
MBMERBERAR B 38 1% 1,00008 7T FAER
Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
BERERETKNH
10,000,0007% 7T
Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 Trading of electric 100% 100%
BHEHR(FE)ERAA &k %A% 2,000,000 7T cables, wires,

wire harness and

accessories
BEXER B 44

BRREMH
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

31. Subsidiaries (Continued) 31. B AT (&)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered

Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTRBRRE/
28 ML B HMELRFAER FTEEEK [ £+
2019 2018
—E-RF ZZ-N\F
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BESEFRO (B
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 Investment and property 100% 100%
EHEHERAA HBERES TmR1E T holding
RERBAEDE
Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric 100% 100%
Limited (wholly owned foreign B K BE HK$65,000,000 cables, wires and
enterprise) (note (a)) FfER wire harness
BERERORINERAA 65,000,000/ 7T REER BREAS
(2 BHEABIMER) (PR 3T (a) BR
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Trading of plastic resins 100% 100%
EHLER(BE)ERAA BE L@mk2AE T and compounds
BEEZBAMBER
La=x]
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary USD50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
BHEHRBVIERAR EBEREE & 48 f50,000% 7T REZER
New Technology Cable Pte. Limited Singapore Ordinary SG$2 License holding 100% 100%
(note (d)) (Fff & (d)) o TR IR T A BR
Shinka K.K. (note (e)) (K 5E(e)) Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000  License holding 100% 100%
=N & 48 10,000,000 8 7T RABR
Perennial USA Inc. United States of Ordinary USD1 Trading of electric 100% 100%
(note (b)) America TEARIETT cables, wires,
(H 5% (b)) EJ5i wire harness and
accessories
BEXER B 44
BRREMH
Shenzhen Welldone Trading Co., Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric 100% 100%

Limited (note (a))
RIESREERESERRA
(M &% (a)

K BE

HK$1,000,000
BTN
1,000,0007% 7T

cables, wires,

wire harness and

accessories
BEEER HH #5

R LB
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BHE—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFE

31. Subsidiaries (Continued) 1. B AT (&)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered

Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
ERTRBRRE
£2#8B B3y sk AMEXRFAER TEXEYK [ £+
2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEEFRO (B
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics and Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Metal Co., Limited (note (a)) B K BE HK$40,000,000 of electric cables,
RINEHEZBRASERRAA &R wires, wire harness
(Ht 3 (a)) 40,000,000/ 7T and accessories
BERHEER  FiR
HEBRRREMN
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Co., Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Limited (note (a)) HB A B HK$10,000,000 of plastic resins and
FYMER BB AR QR (M E@) AR compounds
10,000,000 7T HERHEEBE R
fg k1L & W)
Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Metal Co., Limited (note (c)) B K BE RMB65,000,000 of electric cables,
ARERLEZBASERAR FER wires, wire harness
(M &% (c)) A K #65,000,00070 and accessories
HEBRRREMH
Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited ~ Vietnam Charter capital Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
(note (f) (BIFE(F) HA USD6,200,000 of electric cables,

(2018: USD3,000,000)

wires, wire harness

FAER and accessories
6,200,000% 7T SERHEER 8K
(ZE—NF: HABRRREMH

3,000,000% 7T)

LRMABRBYRERRBLRE -

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability
company.
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE_ZFE—NF+_A=1—HIEFE

31. Subsidiaries (Continued) 31.

Save as noted below, the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places
of incorporation/establishment, except for:

(a)  Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen
Perennial Plastics Co., Limited are in Shenzhen, the
People’'s Republic of China.

(b)  Perennial USA Inc. is in the United States of
America.

(c)  Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Co., Limited is
in Heyuan, the People’s Republic of China.

(d)  New Technology Cable Pte. Limited is in Singapore.

(e)  Shinka K.K. is in Japan.

(f) Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited is in Vietnam.

By B 2 8] (48

BRATERI Ll RARzEEME TR
BB T IEEAE B FEM K Sz i B

(@ BREHKCRIDAERAR - FKYIE
BREBREHERLA RIMER
PRBATERRE LAY B 2R
BB AFR R EAR TR
m o

(b)  Perennial USA Inc.fZ R EE -
() JAIBREHBBRESARARMMRLF
EARKEFMBE R ©

(d)  New Technology Cable Pte. Limited
L B N4 o

(e) Shinka K.K. iz ABZ o

(f) Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co.,
Limited £z A #.7 °
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32. Statement of Financial Position and 32. IR AR RFEEH R

Reserve Movement of the Company

Statement of Financial Position B 3 AR R &
2019 2018
—E-NF S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
hg=s FET FAET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EmBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 62,738 62,738
Current assets mENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BB & B 3K 59,282 59,063
Other receivables, deposits E e sk IE Ji&
and prepayments TEETRIB 145 396
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 179 94
59,606 59,653
Total assets HEE 122,344 122,291
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to PAN/NI N Sl R g s
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [i% A< 19,896 19,896
Other reserves E1‘M§%ﬁ (a) 78,537 78,537
Retained earnings RERF (a) 23,205 23,615
Total equity 1B 121,638 122,048
LIABILITIES a8\
Current liabilities mEAEE
Other payables and accruals E M EARIE R ER X 706 243
Total liabilities weE 706 243
Total equity and liabilities BE=REAE 122,344 122,291
The statement of financial position of the Company was AABZEHBERRER-—E-—_TF=A—
approved by the Board of Directors on 24th March 2020 +INHKREEeH ETREREZ -

and was signed on its behalf.

MON Chung Hung
HiRE
Director

EF

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
B

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31st December 2019
BE-—F—NFF+-A=Z+—HIFFE

32. Statement of Financial Position and 32. IR AEXREEEFHER (&)
Reserve Movement of the Company

(Continued)
(a) Reserve Movement (a) REES
Contributed Capital
Share surplus redemption Total other Retained
premium (note) reserves reserves earnings Total
BB Ex
R 17 % 8 (&) EE#EE SHOHE RKRBEEF BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTHT T THT FTHT T
At 1st January 2019 R-ZE—-NL%¥—A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,615 102,152
Total comprehensive loss rEE2AEBBLEER
for the year - - - - (410) (410)
At 31st December 2019 RZZE-NF
+-ZA=+—-8H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,205 101,742
At 1st January 2018 R=-ZZ-N\§¥—A—A 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,517 102,054
Total comprehensive income rEE2RRFBE
for the year - - - - 98 98
At 31st December 2018 RZZ-\F
+-A=+—-H 15,885 62,548 104 78,5637 23,615 102,152
note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when MeE: ARBZHBARBEARRDFE
the Company issued shares in exchange for the TRDUZBRBRARARG
shares of subsidiaries being acquired in connection EEBHBXAMBR AR LA
with the reorganisation of the Group prior to its EERNEE MK E B QA
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, ZROMEE  HHERERA
and represents the difference between the nominal BT (0 2 A B P Uk B B B
value of the Company's shares issued and the RNRAZEETFBEZERE - BE
value of net assets of the subsidiaries acquired. BRE-NAN—FQAEE
Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as BE])  BARBBAIHEDSIRTR
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable R-AAEEZE@T BAR
to the shareholders. At Group level, the contributed BIOENSEAEBBIE AR
surplus is reclassified into its component reserves ZIREBEKED -

of the underlying subsidiaries.
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33. Subsequent Events

(a)

34. Approval

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been
implemented across the regions including Hong
Kong, China and Vietnam. Various emergency public
health measures were introduced by the public
authorities in the PRC and the Group’s factories
in the PRC were initially suspended. At the date
on which this set of financial statements were
authorised for issue, the factories in the PRC and
Vietnam have been substantially restored to the
normal operation capacities. The Group will monitor
the situation and continuously engage relevant
resources and adjust the purchase and production
activities in a timely manner to mitigate the potential
impact. Accordingly, the Directors consider the
outbreak of COVID-19 has minimal impact on
Group’s operations and were not aware of any
material adverse effects on the consolidated financial
statements.

On 11th March 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary in
Vietnam of the Group entered into a contract with
a local contractor for the third phase construction
works in Vietnam (known as the “Third Phase
Construction Works”) with a consideration of
approximately HK$15,336,000. It is intended that the
consideration will be funded by internal resources
and banking facilities.

The Third Phase Construction Works shall consist
of the construction of two factory buildings and
one auxiliary warehouse, comprising a gross floor
area of approximately 6,068 square metres, and are
expected to be completed by the end of August
2020.

of the Consolidated

Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by
the Board of Directors on 24th March 2020.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2019

HdE—-F

—NFF A=+ —HIFFE

MRETE

(

34. 4%

EN o

AZE_FEEY  —E-NEHFH
Tﬂtﬁak%%é(rcovm-m&%énz
% O AEBERBEEE  FER
BEEANZREGLEETT —ZH
T PERNERBSEE &
ANEBEREE  ASERPENT
WAL EL REBEEBHEZEYH
HREBH FEEEEOTIHRE X
BMELEREE AEBEBERIE
N FBESREBRER - ILEEH
BREBNEELZS  UREEEE
FE AN EEEEECOVID-19
BBEHAEEELEEEN B
AEBRESUHRAUBRRENKT
ﬁiﬁ?ﬂ%;o

R-ZZE-_ZTFZA+—H A£EE
— MR ENEEWNB AR HE
HAAEERIMY— DAY NETBE
ME =R EETRENE =R
BETRE] KRE A 415,336,000
BT MBBEATERLETRE
BARE -

ﬂ}.

FEoEREETE B EZMERK
FEFL—HKEBEER BHEME
#16,068F 5K - MHIKBRN —T_-F
FNAEKRT -

EMBWMR ZAE

AUMBHRER_T_FF=_A_+

mH%i%ﬁmﬁ

15
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Bt 5 MR

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-nFE ZE-NF ZT—ttF ZE—RF ZT—HF
Operating results REXE(THER)
(HK$’000)
Revenue W &5 301,357 355,744 364,401 359,035 401,669
Operating (loss)/profit L (B8, m A (11,916) 1,726 26,461 19,873 16,175
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(ER)/
i A (13,198) (1,760) 19,283 14,622 11,688
Financial position MERR(FERT)
(HK$’000)
Net current assets MEBEEFE 130,939 133,146 169,387 139,996 153,955
Shareholders’ funds BEES® 562,524 578,085 562,417 504,470 506,384
Per share data (HK$ cent) &REE GE1L)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(BR), /AT
- basic and diluted - EARLEE (6.6) (0.9) 9.7 7.3 5.9
Dividend per share (interim &R S (FH K
and final dividend) RERE) - - - 2 2
Key Statistics FEHE
Inventory turnover (days) FEREE(XE) 149 117 118 112 110
Debtors’ turnover (days) JE Uy B R 8 (K 80 104 88 81 85 84
Creditors’ turnover (days) TR BE®E(XE) 39 38 40 48 43
Acid-test ratio (%) R B (%) 119.3% 138.1% 174.6% 160.3% 163.3%
Working capital (%) EEE D (%) 220.7% 220.1% 285.6% 242.2% 252.1%
Total liabilities/total capital A& /HEEH
employed (%) & 7K (%) 27.1% 26.8% 23.2% 26.3% 26.9%
Return on capital employed & fi & 7K 3 B =
(operating profit/ (mEmH
shareholders’ funds) (%) KEES) (%) (2.1%) 0.3% 4.7% 3.9% 3.2%
Return on average total FHBEERYE
assets (profit after (BR#EER
taxation/average total FHBREE) (%)
assets) (%) (1.8%) (0.2%) 2.9% 2.3% 0.8%
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